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Strategic report
The Directors present their strategic report on the company for the year ended 31 March 2021.
Review of the business

The activity of the company during the year continued to be the manufacture, marketing and sales of a broad range
of pharmaceutical products.

The profit for the year before taxation increased as shown in the income statement to £58.9 million (2020: £49.1
million).

The company operates predominately in a highly competitive UK pharmaceutical market environment where new
entrants and established competitors are continually putting pressure on market prices and the UK Government seeks
to control the cost of medicines to the National Health Service.

The company retains its position as a major supplier to the UK generics market and despite competitive trading
conditions, the directors are confident that the company will maintain its current strong position. The company
manages the risk of strong competition by:

e  Building on high quality manufacturing capabilities and competitive cost base

e  Rapidly responding to changing market requirements;

e Different customer service offerings

e Broad portfolio offering and successful new launch strategy of generic and novel medicines

e Good cost control and streamlining of business process to gain efficiency savings.

2021 2020 Comments

Revenue growth 4.6% 5.0% Revenue increased by 4.6%
year on year, in line with
prior year growth rates.

Operating profit % 19.8% 17.3% Business operation profit
increased year on year

The Barnstaple site is an EU/GMP approved large solid oral dosage facility that serves predominately the UK generic
market. Other markets supplied include the Middle East, Asia and Europe. The site has successfully maintained a
highly competitive low-cost position through scale and breadth of portfolio and continues to focus on cost reduction
initiatives whiist continuing to invest in the facility with improvements in technology and automation. Customer
service remains a key success driver.

Financial risk management

The company’s activities expose it to a number of financial risks including credit risk, interest risk, foreign currency
risk and liquidity risk. The company does not use derivative financial instruments and tries to limit those risks
through the support of its parent company.

Price risk

The price of pharmaceutical products can fluctuate depending on competitor activity and supply availability. The
risk is managed by a diverse broad portfolio and a flexible supply chain to respond quickly to market dynamics.
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Legal & regulatory risk

The company is fully committed to complying with all applicable laws and regulations, including in respect of
intellectual property, business compliance and competition law. The company is committed to bringing affordable
medicines to patients and has robust compliance programmes in place, which includes a fair competition policy,
employee training to aid understanding of competition law and how it applies to our business, and a whistleblowing
line allowing our employees and business partners to safely (and anonymously) report any policy breaches. Such
policies and procedures mitigate the risks in this area.

Credit risk

The company is exposed to the risk of financial losses should a counter party fail to meet their obligation.
Appropriate credit limits are regularly reviewed and approved by directors and trade finance instruments such as
letters of credits are used to limit any exposure. Overdue balances are reviewed on a weekly basis by senior
management and any issues identified are dealt with in a timely manner.

Liquidity & cash flow risk

The company controls liquidity risk by monitoring and forecasting cash balances very closely and enjoying parent
company support for any excess or shortfalls in cash balances.

Interest risk

The company has both interest-bearing assets and interest-bearing liabilities with intercompany counter parties
which exposes the company to changes in interest rates.

Foreign currency risks

Foreign currency exchange risk arises from purchases and sales in foreign currency. The company does not hedge
against foreign currency risk and uses the group treasury function for support.

COVID-19 and going concern

The spread of COVID-19 required the company to enact significant business continuity measures and plans across
its entire operation. This meant temporary closure of office facilities whilst continuing to operate critical
manufacturing and distribution facilities. The company adapted to the impacts of the pandemic by enacting a wide
variety of measures to contain any potential spread of the virus within its operations. This included travel restrictions,
office closures, social distancing measures, working in team shifts, increased hygiene and cleaning measures, use of
personal protective equipment and ensuring employees that were able to work from home in an environment which
minimised risk to themselves and business disruptions. The company actively implemented several initiatives which
included both antibody and antigen testing, new working principles, supplied facemasks and undertook two *Pulse’
employee surveys to ensure that teams had the opportunity to feedback on the company’s COVID response. A
phased return to more normal working arrangements is planned to begin during the second half of 2021.

As the company is an integral part of the UK medicines supply chain and also a major supplier to European markets,
it was important that all measures enacted were able to best ensure the continued supply of vital medicines. The
company continues to work closely with the European agencies and associations to ensure that critical medicines
remain available to patients. Despite the pandemic, the company was able to meet its financial targets in the year.

The company’s liabilities have been guaranteed by the parent in the form of a parental letter of support which
includes all long-term loans and borrowings. The directors of the parent company have, at group level, carried out a
detailed analysis covering its financial position, availability of cash and borrowings, covenant compliance as well
as base case and downside scenarios with reverse stress testing for cash and covenant compliance under both. This
analysis has assessed the Going Concern up until the end of August 2022. Following the analysis, the directors have
a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. The company therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial
statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on the 20" September 2021 and signed on its
behalf by:

H : Digitally signed by Nadine Jakes
Nad in e Ja kes ,/'/\Date: 2021.09.20 11:35:57 +01'00"

N Jakes
Director
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Directors’ report
Directors’ report for the year ended 31 March 2021

The directors present their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021.

The directors of Accord-UK Ltd are required to act in a manner compliant with their duties as set out in the UK
Companies Act 2006.

This includes a duty to promote the success of the company for the benefit of its shareholders. Board processes are
designed to support the Directors in discharging this duty, particularly in relation to decision making processes.
Here, the directors set out engagement activities with key stakeholders. In order to fulfil this duty, Directors must
consider the following: )

+ likely consequences of any decisions in the long term;

* interests of the company's employees;

» need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;

« impact of the company's operations on the community and environment;

» the company's reputation for high standards of business conduct; and

* need to act fairly between members of the company.

The following is an overview of how the Board has performed its duties during the year.

Customers

Supporting our customers and improving their overall customer experience is a priority of the Board. Through
understanding our customers’ needs, we are able to offer products and services to fit their circumstances and by
providing a positive customer experience, we aim to build relationships so they will continue to do business with us
in the future. The company has invested in these relationships through its broad customer facing teams, across all
sectors of the pharmaceutical market and by running annual market research within specific segments and customers
to evaluate the company’s offer and ensure it is fit for purpose. The investment in the distribution centre in Didcot
is one example of striving to improve service and delivery excellence into the company’s large UK wholesale and
retail customers. The company receives information on service levels at every Board meeting and also customer and
product complaints as part of its Risk report and Quality and Pharmacovigilance (QPV) board meetings and keeps
this under review.

Shareholders
Accord-UK Ltd is a wholly owned subsidiary of Accord Healthcare Limited, a leading supplier of generics
medicines in the UK.

The Group Board receives a monthly report on how the business is performing on all aspects including client and
commercial aspects as well as strategy and colleague engagement.

Employees
The Directors recognise the importance of employees, ensuring their views are considered and any impact on them
when making decisions and supporting their wellbeing.

The Board receives regular reports on matters relating to employees.

The company recognises the value of informal consultation at work group level where its policy is to encourage an
open management style with informal discussion about day-to-day operations and the technical and other factors
affecting each work group.

A variety of methods are used to inform and discuss progress and consult on matters of concern to employees.

The company continues its policy of giving full and fair consideration to applications for employment from disabled
persons and to the continuance of employment of existing employees who become disabled and for their subsequent
training, promotion and career development related to their abilities and aptitudes.

The company operates a bonus scheme as a means of encouraging the involvement of employees in the company’s
performance.

The company is committed to its adopted safety practices, which have enabled it to maintain high standards of health
and safety for the benefit of employees, customers and the general public. The company is ISO 14001 certified and
has successfully achieved ISO 45001 certification for Occupational Health and Safety.
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Suppliers

Accord-UK Ltd has a range of suppliers, who provide goods and services to support the operations of the company.
The terms of those supplies, the day to day relationships and the business continuity plans and sourcing strategies
are negotiated and managed by the procurement team. The board received regular updates on:

« performance of key suppliers against set KPI's

e payment practices, policies and performance

* spend categories, significant contracts, savings and risks

Regulation

Accord-UK Ltd is authorised and regulated by the Medicines and Healthcare products Regulatory Agency
(*“MHRA™) and must therefore meet obligations imposed by the regulator in addition to complying with other
legislation applicable to the company. ’

The MHRA require Accord-UK Ltd to comply with the requirements of GxP (Good *X’ Practice, where *X’ is used
as a collective term for GDP - Good Distribution Practice, GCP — Good Clinical practice, GLP — Good Laboratory
Practice, GMP — Good Manufacturing Practice, GPvP — Good Pharmacovigilance Practice). The ultimate aim of
GxP is to ensure that medicinal products meet the required standards of quality, safety and efficacy throughout the
product lifecycle.

Accord-UK Ltd maintains GxP compliant systems, processes and procedures to achieve those principles. Accord-
UK Ltd submits information and updates to the MHRA in line with reporting requirements and is inspected by the
MHRA on a routine basis to confirm GxP compliance.

Community
Corporate social responsibility is fundamental to the company’s purpose and success as an organisation.

The company’s commitment and contribution to the environment and to society is evident in every aspect of what
we do as a pharmaceutical company. This approach contributes towards business growth and helps deliver on the
company’s mission to ‘make it better’. It is also the right thing to do.

Further information on how the company engages with its wider community can be found within the Corporate
Social Responsibility Brochure: https://www.accord-healthcare.com

Future Developments

The strategy of Accord-UK Ltd is to continue its growth and leadership position in pharmaceuticals through:

e aflexible, scalable business model permitting us to adapt flexibly to changing market dynamics

o scale presence and a broad and growing portfolio

e well established relationship with customers, NHS, payers and government and exceptional product launch
expertise )

e cost leadership through continued efficiency programs and access to Intas Group supply chains and scale

Accord-UK has been working on ensuring continued supply of medicines, despite the impacts of the COVID-19
pandemic. The company was able to enact its business continuity plans, which allowed it to react and adapt to ensure
that the UK was effectively supported with essential medicines supply.
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Dividends

The directors paid a dividend of £30m or £19.64 per share (2020: £54m or £35.36 per share) to its immediate parent
company, Accord Healthcare Ltd.

Political expenditure
During the 2021 financial year the company made no political contributions (2020: none).
Directors’ indemnities

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the Directors have the benefit of an indemnity which is a qualifying
third-party indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in force
throughout the last financial year and is currently in force. The company also maintained, throughout the financial
year, Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance in respect of itself and its Directors through participation in a group
wide policy.

Research and Development

The company benefits from access to the parent company’s new product pipeline, which are developed in specialist
R&D centres across the intercompany network.

Local R&D activities are focused on transfers, new technologies and methods to achieve efficiencies in
manufacturing, packing and testing and to strengthen and extend formulations of older molecules.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure
Framework™, and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of
the company for that period. [n preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101, have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

e make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors of the ultimate parent company are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the of the ultimate
parent company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on the 20" September 2021 and signed on its
behalf by:

. " Digitally signed by
Md ne Nadine Jakes
_Datg: 2021.09.20
Jakes /. 11:33:59 40100

N Jakes Whiddon Valley
Director Barnstaple
Devon

EX32 8NS
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon report

Statement of carbon emissions in compliance with Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) covering
energy use and associated greenhouse gas emissions relating to gas, electricity and transport, intensity ratios and
information relating to energy efficiency actions.

Current reporting year (April 2020 — March 2021)

Total energy use covering electricity, gas and transport 18,250,670 kWh

Total emissions generated through combustion of gas 1,815.10 tCO2e

Total emissions generated through combustion of other fuel 0.00 tCO2e

Total emissions generated through use of purchased electricity 1,948.37 tCO2e

Total emissions generated through business travel 4.55 tCO2e

Total gross emissions 3,768.02 tCO2e

Intensity ratio (total gross emissions) ' 6.66 kgCO2e per sqft

Corporate Résponsibility and Sustainability actions

We are committed to responsible energy management and will practice energy efficiency throughout our organisation. We
recognise that climate change is one of the most serious environmental challenges currently threatening the global community
and we understand we have a role to play in reducing greenhouse gas emissions. Accord has set the following Corporate
Responsibility goals to help us reduce our impact:

Qur environment

1.By thinking differently and using a blend of proven and innovative technologies, we aim to reduce our total energy usage and
water consumption by 25% by 2025 across our Accord manufacturing sites. *

2.Through carbon reduction projects and utilising renewable technologies, Accord will target carbon neutrality of all our
Accord owned sites by 2030

3.Through educating our staff and conducting internal initiatives we aim that by 2025 <1% of our waste is sent to landfill and
we have actively moved up the waste hierarchy (i.e. from disposal to recycling through to prevention/ reuse)

4. We will reduce single use plastic usage across all packing, manufacturing and office sites by 50kg per person by 2025
* Per ‘000 revenue using base year 18/19 and portfolio of sites
Our people

1.We will provide environmental education to selected learning institutions and project opportunities to STEM students
engaging with our local communities via projects and thought leadership lectures. We will share best practice across the
network from our existing apprenticeship schemes.

2.We will do our utmost to provide a safe working environment with minimal impact on the environment, encouraging all staff
to be proactive in risk management.

3.We will focus on safety in our supply chain and exercise our Environment Health and Safety expectations with our suppliers
and CDMO partners. We will adhere to the Antimicrobial resistance (AMR) Framework for our manufacturing/ formulation
and packaging sites.
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Working with local communities and providing medicines globally

1.Supporting International Health Partners (IHP) with our mission to increase patients’ access to life-changing medicines and to
eradicate the suffering caused by poor access to medicine across the world. Building year on year on more donations made.

2.Creating charitable change by ensuring employees have the time and resources to undertake volunteer and charity work in the
local communities that matter most to them.

In line with our Corporate responsibility goals listed above, we have implemented the actions below for the purpose of
increasing the businesses energy efficiency in the relevant financial year:

+ In line with UK Government guidelines we moved all non-critical onsite staff to remote home working during the COVID-
19 pandemic. We implemented travel restrictions and encouraged the use of video conferencing; this has reduced overall
travel emissions (commute and business).

»  From September 2020 UK Operational sites have purchased natural renewable electricity. This is electricity generated from
solar, wind, tide and other natural generation schemes. These carbon savings are included in the tables above.

+ The Bamnstaple manufacturing site packing process cooling upgrade was completed. This replacement cooling device
delivers a more efficient cooling process due to a free cooling configuration.

+ The Barnstaple chilled water site wide upgrade was also completed this FY providing the site with an efficient and robust
system. Estimated reduction 400 tCO2e due to refrigerant gas removal.

»  Primary Heat Supply Strategy (PHSS) a project involving combined heat and power to reduce the current site steam needs
has entered stage 2 with the preliminary design issued for executive review

= 20+ water meters have been installed across the Bamstaple site network, allowing for greater visibility of water usage to
promote saving initiatives.

The following energy efficiency and sustainability measures are under consideration for implementation during 2021

. Continue the Primary Heat Supply Strategy for Barnstaple site

. Phases 4 & S of site air change project planned for execution

. Installation of new more efficient Air handling unit for the Barnstaple site

. High Voltage transformer replacements utilising voltage optimisation technology

. Photovoltaic feasibility studies are underway at both the Barnstaple and Didcot sites

. CR and Sustainability ambassadors will continue helping Accord achieve group CR and Sustainability goals.
Methodology used in the calculation of disclosures

SECR methodology as specified in "Environmental reporting guidelines: including Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting
and greenhouse gas reporting” used in conjunction with Government GHG reporting conversion factors.

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/850130/Env-reporting-
guidance_inc_SECR_31March.pdf
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ACCORD-UK
LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Accord-UK Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021 which
comprise the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, the statement of financial position,
the statement of changes in equity and the related notes 1 to 23, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the company'’s affairs as at 31 March 2021 and of its profit for the year
then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to the disclosures made in note 14 to the financial statements concerning the uncertain
outcome of the investigation being undertaken by the Competition and Markets Authority (CMA) relating
to the pricing of Hydrocortisone in the UK, where the company is one of the parties under investigation.
The company has made representations challenging many aspects of the allegations made by the CMA
who issued their final decision on 15 July 2021. A provision for the potential liability that may result has
been made in the financial statements, however the ultimate outcome of the matter is uncertain. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a period up to September 2022.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described
in the relevant sections of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

10
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Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’'s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information
contained within the annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement
in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or directors’
report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
e adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 7, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to'do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design

procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk

of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting

from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional

misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting

irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and

detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the entity and management.

Our approach was as follows:

«  We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the
company and determined that the most significant are Companies Act 2006, Financial Reporting
Standard 101 and Income Tax Act 2007

«  We understood how the company is complying with those frameworks by performing inquiries with
management and those charged with governance for legal and compliance matters.

»  Weassessed the susceptibility of the company’s financial statements to material misstatement, including
how fraud might occur by inquiring with management and performing a walkthrough of the financial
statement close process. We consider revenue recognition to be a fraud risk due to management override
of controls, therefore we tested manual journal entries posted to revenue and also performed period end
cut off procedures. Further, we performed overall analytical procedures to ensure that the overall
financial performance and the position as at and for the period ended are free of material misstatements.
We have also performed journal entry testing to identify unusual transactions.

» Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify noncompliance with such
laws and regulations. Our procedures involved inquires with the management, performing tests of
details such as checking for unusual legal or penalty expenses, and performing journal entry testing to
identify unusual transactions.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respdnsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

DocuSigned by:

Jolun Bowarile

o AR WA P {Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

Bristol
Date September 20, 2021
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Income statement
(All amounts in £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

Note 12 Months ended 12 Months ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

Revenue 3 296,870 283,783
Cost of sales (174,572) (162,643)
Gross profit 122,298 121,140
Distribution costs (9,237) (11,434)
Administrative expenses (54,134) (60,117)
Other expenses (93) (406)
Operating profit 4 58,834 49,183
Finance income 5 608 490
Finance costs 6 (576) (588)
Finance (cost) income — net 32 98)
Profit on ordinary activities before income tax 58,866 49,085
Income tax expense on ordinary activities 8 (14,041) (10,450)
Profit for the year 44,825 38,635

All amounts relate to continuing operations.
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Statement of comprehensive income
(All amounts in £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

Accord-UK Ltd

Report and financial statements

Year ended 31 March 2021

Note 12 Months ended 12 Months ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
Profit for the year 44,825 38,635
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss
Actuarial loss on pension schemes 19 (1,259) (169)
Movement on deferred tax relating to change in tax - -
rates
(1,259) (169)
Items that maybe subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss
Asset ceiling on pension 19 923 143
Movement of deferred tax relating to pension 239 32
deficit
Movement on deferred tax relating to asset ceiling (175) 27)
987 148
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of 272) 21
tax
Total comprehensive income for the year 44,553 38,614




DocuSign Envelope ID: 5C072254-DB60-426D-B076-26A70A5C7B76

Accord-UK Ltd
Report and financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2021
Statement of financial position
(All amounts in £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
Non-Current Asset
Intangible assets 9 7,094 11,577
Investment in subsidiaries 22 33,876 33,876
Property, plant and equipment 10 55,468 54,824
Other non-current assets 14 67,600 -
164,038 100,277
Current assets
Inventory 11 60,966 60,170
Trade and other receivables 12 69,782 53,295
Cash and cash equivalents 1,577 1,750
132,325 115,215
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year 13 78,920 90,025
Net current assets 53,405 25,190
Total assets less current liabilities ) 217,443 125,467
Creditors ~ amounts falling due after more than one year 16 (1,70s) (2,046)
Provision for liabilities 14 (81,036) (2,342)
Net assets 134,702 121,079
Equity
Called up share capital 17 1,527 1,527
Share premium account 42,171 42,171
Retained earnings 91,004 77,381
Total shareholders’ funds 134,702 121,079

The notes on pages 17 to 34 are an integral part to these financial statements

The financial statements on pages 13 to 34 were authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20" September
2021 and were signed on its behalf.

. { Dicitaly si .
» Digitally signed by Nadine Jakes
N a d I n e J a ke S)Bate: 2021.09.20 11:34:50 +01'00’

V4

N Jakes
Director
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Statement of changes in equity

(All amounts in £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

Accord-UK Ltd

Report and financial statements

Year ended 31 March 2021

Notes Called Share Retained Total
up share premium ' earnings
capital
Balance at 1 April 2019 1,527 8,294 92,168 101,989
Profit for the year ¢ 38,635 38,635
Other comprehensive income for the year:
Actuarial losses on pensions scheme 19 - - (169) (169)
Asset ceiling - - 143 143
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension deficit and rate
changes - - (27) 27)
Movement on deferred asset ceiling - - 32 32
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 38,614 38,614
Dividends (54,000) (54,000)
Deemed capital contribution - - 599 599
Investments in subsidiaries 22 - 33,877 - 33,877
Total transactions with owners recognised directly in equity - 33,877 (53,401) (19,524)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1,527 42,171 77,381 121,079
Balance at 1 April 2020 1,527 42,171 77,381 121,079
Profit for the year 44,825 44,825
Other comprehensive income for the year:
Actuarial losses on pensions scheme 19 - - (1,259) (1,259)
Asset ceiling - - 923 923
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension deficit and rate
changes - - (175) (175)
Movement on deferred asset ceiling - - 239 239
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 44,553 44,553
Dividends (30,000) (30,000)
Deemed capital contribution - - (930) (930)
Total transactions with owners recognised directly in equity - - (30,930) (30,930)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,527 42,171 91,004 134,702
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Accord-UK Ltd
Report and financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2021

Notes to the financial statements
1 General Information

The principal activity of Accord-UK Ltd is the manufacture and distribution of pharmaceutical preparations and
products.

The company is a private company limited by shares and is incorporated and domiciled in the UK. The address of
its registered office is Whiddon Valley, Barnstaple, Devon EX32 8NS
2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
material in relation to the company’s financial statements, except as noted below.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of Accord-UK Ltd have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
101, ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ (FRS 101). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of land and buildings and derivative financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss, and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

The following exemptions from the requirements of IFRS have been applied in the preparation of these financial
statements, in accordance with FRS 101:

- Paragraphs 91 to 99 of [FRS 13, *Fair value measurement’ (disclosure of valuation techniques and inputs used for
fair value measurement of assets and liabilities)

- Paragraph 38 of IAS I, ‘Presentation of financial statements’ comparative information requirements in respect of:
e Paragraph 79(a) (iv) of IAS 1;
e  Paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment

e  Paragraph 118(e) of IAS 38 Intangible assets (reconciliations between the carrying amount at the beginning
and end of the period)

- The following paragraphs of IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’:
e 10(d), (statement of cash flow)

e 10(f), (a statement of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding period when an entity applies
an accounting policy retrospectively or makes retrospective restatement of items in its financial statements,
or when it reclassifies items in its financial statements)

e 16 (statement of compliance with all [FRS)
e 38A (requirement for a minimum of two primary statements, including cash flow statements)
e 38B-D (additional comparative information)
e 40A-D (requirements for a third statement of financial position)
e |11 (cash flow statement information)
e 134-136 (capital management disclosures)
- TAS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows’

- Paragraph 30 and 31 of IAS 8 *Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors’ (requirement for
the disclosure of information when an entity has not applied a new IFRS that has been issued but is not yet effective)
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Accord-UK Ltd
Report and financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2021

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

- Paragraph 17 of IAS 24, ‘Related party disclosures’ (key management compensation)

- The requirements in IAS 24, ‘Related party disclosures’ to disclose related party transactions entered into between
two or more members of a group.

Going concern

The company’s liabilities have been guaranteed by the parent in the form of a parental letter of support which
includes all long-term loans and borrowings. The directors of the parent company have, at group level, carried out a
detailed analysis covering its financial position, availability of cash and borrowings, covenant compliance as well
as base case and downside scenarios with reverse stress testing for cash and covenant compliance under both. This
analysis has assessed the Going Concern up until the end of August 2022. Following the analysis, the directors have
a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. The company therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial
statements.

Consolidation

The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Accord Healthcare Limited and of its ultimate parent Intas
Pharmaceuticals Limited. It is included in the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate parent.

The company is exempt by virtue of S401 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare group
accounts. These financial statements present information about the company as an individual undertaking and not
about its group.

The company’s ultimate parent undertaking, Intas Pharmaceuticals Limited, includes the company in its
consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements of Intas Pharmaceuticals Limited are
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards which is not materially different to International Financial
Reporting Standards.

Items included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in
‘Pounds Sterling® (£), which is also the company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the contracted rate or the rate
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and the gains or losses on translation are included in the profit and loss
account.

Property, plant and equipment

The cost of other property, plant and equipment is the purchase cost, together with any incidental expenses of
acquisition. Depreciation is provided to write off the cost, less estimated residual values, evenly over the expected
useful lives. It is calculated at the following rates:

Buildings 40 years
Plant and machinery 3 — 10 years
Fixtures and fittings 3 —7years

Intangible fixed assets and amortisation

Intangible fixed assets represented by licenses, patents and trademarks are capitalised at their cost.

Intangible assets purchased by the company are amortised to nil by equal annual instalments over their useful economic lives,
generally their respective unexpired periods, of ten to fifteen years. Amortisation is recognised within Administration Expense
in the Income Statement.
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Accord-UK Ltd
Report and financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2021

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are amounts due from customers for products sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current assets, if not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised at cost less provisions for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and bank overdrafts. In the balance
sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Creditors

Creditors are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by the
supplier or not. Creditors are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of timing
differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes.

Deferred tax is recognised, without discounting, in respect of all timing differences which have arisen but not
reversed at the balance sheet date, with the following exceptions:

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which timing differences reverse,
based on tax rates and laws enacted at the balance sheet date.

Contribution to pension funds

The company contributes to a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to the group’s defined
contribution pension scheme are charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which they become payable.
Differences between contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as accruals in the
balance sheet.

The Companies defined benefit scheme is closed to future accrual and liabilities are secured with an insurance buy-
in contract. Pension scheme liabilities are measured using a projected unit method and discounted at the current rate
of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liability.

The pension scheme surplus is restricted by an asset ceiling adjustment. The movement in the scheme is split
between past service costs, finance items and, in the statement of total recognised gains and losses, actuarial gains
and losses. The pension scheme balance is recognised net of any related deferred tax balance with the recognition
of any deferred tax asset following the principles described in the deferred tax accounting policy above.

Share Based Payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions). Equity-
settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant
date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.
Periodically, participants may cancel vested options in exchange for a cash payment after which a revised equity
component is reflected in the financial statements.
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Accord-UK Ltd
Report and financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2021

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Revenue

Revenue from contracts with the company is recognised when contro! of the goods is transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods.

Revenue is recognised upon satisfaction of a performance obligation. The revenue recognition occurs at a point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally, on acceptance of the goods.

Deferred income

When cash has been received by the company but the risks and rewards of ownership of the related goods have not
been transferred, the cash received is credited to deferred income and will only be released to turnover when the
risks and rewards of the related goods are no longer with the company.

Government grants

Grants that relate to specific capital expenditure are treated as deferred income which is then credited to the profit
and loss account over the related assets’ useful economic life.

Inventories

Inventory and work in progress are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

In the case of raw materials cost are based on actual cost with variances capitalised on a first in first out basis. In
the case of work in progress and finished goods, cost consists of direct materials, direct labour and attributable
production overheads. Attributable overheads have been allocated to production on the basis of normal activity.

Net realisable value is estimated selling price less all further costs to completion.

Financial instruments
Initial recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The company shall recognise a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when, and
only when, the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Measurement of Financial Assets
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows and : :

(b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset shall be measured at fair value unless it is measured at amortised cost in accordance with above
criteria. The company measures Loans and Receivables and Trade and Other Receivables at amortised cost.

Classification of financial assets

The company classify financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value on the basis
of both the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset.

Derecognition of financial assets

The company derecognise a financial asset when and only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset as and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

A gain or loss on a financial asset that is measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship be
recognised in profit or loss when the financial asset is derecognised, impaired or reclassified in accordance and
through the amortisation process.
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Accord-UK Ltd
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Year ended 31 March 2021

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial Liabilities Recognition

The company measured the financial liability at fair value, including the costs of the transaction which can be directly
assigned financial liability, when these are designated at their fair value in the profit and loss account.

The company assessed that the fair value of loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts, and trade and other payables.

The company has the following non-derivative financial liabilities loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts, and trade
and other payables. :

Financial Liabilities Subsequent measurement

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The company derecognises a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial
position when, and only when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, shall be recognised in profit or loss.

A gain or loss on a financial liability that is measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship be
recognised in profit or loss when the financial liability is derecognised and through the amortisation process.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the Statement of Financial Position when,
and only when, the company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Research and development expenditure

Research and development expenditure is charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which it is incurred.

Leases

Identification of a lease

Atinception of a contract, the company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the company
assesses whether: '

e the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly and should be
physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has
a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

e the company has the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the
period of use;

e the company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The company has the decision-making rights that are
most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the company has the
right to direct the use of the asset if either:

o the company has the right to operate the asset; or
o the company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Leases (continued)

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

Under IFRS 16, the company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct cost incurred and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which
it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the earliest useful life of the right-of-use asset or at the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of the right-
of-use assets is determined as the initial non-cancellable lease term adjusted by any extension or termination options
available under the contract. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any,
and adjusted for certain re-measurements of lease liability.

Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if such rate is not readily available,
. incremental borrowing rate of the company. Generally, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the
discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

o fixed lease payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

e variable lease payments that depend in an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

* amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and,

o the exercise price under the purchase option that the company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option,
and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in any of the following:

e The lease terms

e  The assessment of whether the company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to purchase the underlying
asset

e The amounts expected to be payable under residual value guarantees
Future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate

¢ In-substance fixed lease payments

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset or is recorded in statement of income statement if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.

The company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property as a separate line
item and lease liabilities in ‘Interest bearing borrowings’ in the statement of financial position. Similarly, the
depreciation arising from the right-of-use asset has been recognised under ‘Depreciation’ and interest on lease
liabilities under ‘Financing cost’ in the statement of income.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
At the time of initial recognition, the company shall elect to not recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases
where,

e the total lease term is less than or equal to 12 months i.e. short-term leases

e value of the underlying asset is considered as a low value lease

The company does not have any low value or short-term leases.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the application of the company’s accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent

from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and

other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that

period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

The estimates and critical judgments which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities are outlined below:

Critical judgements

The following judgements (apart from those involving estimates) have had the most significant effect on
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Retirement benefits

The company’s defined benefit schemes’ pension liability/asset, which is assessed each year by actuaries, is
based on key assumptions including discount rates, mortality rates, inflation and pension costs. These
assumptions, individually or collectively, may be different to actual outcomes; refer to note 19 for details.

A retirement benefit surplus is only recognised to the extent that it is expected to be recoverable in the future.
Taxation and deferred taxation

The company is subject to income taxes in the UK. At each financial year end, judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. The company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based
on the best estimates at the balance sheet date.

Determining the deferred tax on non-current assets and liabilities requires an element of judgement. The
company recognises deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the best estimate at the balance sheet date.
Where the final tax outcome of the above matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such determination is
made. The final outcome of some of these tax items may give rise to material income statement and/or cash flow
movements.

Legal Provisions

The company is party to some legal cases in various stages of litigation as disclosed in provisions (Note 14) and
Contingent Liabilities. The amount of damages and costs is not known and judgement is required in determining
the provision.

Amortisation and impairment of intangibles

For material intangible assets the company makes a fair valuation in determining their remaining useful lives.
Management believes that the assigned values and useful lives, as well as the underlying assumptions, are
reasonable, though different assumptions and assigned lives could have a significant impact on the reported
amounts.

The carrying amounts of intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may be impaired. The recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated as the higher of fair value less the cost of disposal and the value in use, with an impairment charge
recognised whenever the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

Provision for rebates

The company estimates its provision for rebates based on current contractual terms and conditions as well as
historical experience, changes to business practices. While such experience has enabled reasonable estimations
in the past, history may not always be an accurate indicator of future rebate liabilities. The company continually
monitors the provisions for rebates and makes adjustments when it believes that actual rebates may differ from
established reserves. All rebates are recognised in the period in which the underlying sales are recognised as a
reduction of revenue



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5C072254-DB60-426D-B076-26A70A5C7B76

Accord-UK Ltd
Report and financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2021

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3 Revenue

The revenue and profit before taxation is attributable to one activity in the UK, the manufacture, sale and marketing of
pharmaceutical products.

An analysis of turnover by geographical market based on the location of the customer is given below:

2021 2020
£000 £000
United Kingdom 262,248 258,967
Overseas 34,622 24816
296,870 283,783
4 Operating profit
2021 2020
£000 £000
Operating profit is stated after charging:
Depreciation of owned assets 4,649 4,681
Amortisation of owned assets 1,439 4,665
Impairment of intangible assets 3,112 13,352
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 56 -
Auditors’ remuneration — audit 194 - 207
Operating lease rentals recognised as an expense (44) 254
Net loss on foreign currency translation 93 406
Research and development expenditure 1,711 1,001
Cost of stocks recognised as an expense (included in cost of sales) 6,102 2,860
5 Interest receivable and similar income
2021 2020
£000 £000
Interest on intercompany loans 608 490
608 490

Of the above amounts £607,868 was receivable from group undertakings (2020: £457,874 receivable).

6 Interest payable and similar charges
2021 2020
£000 £000
Lease interest 65 163
Third party financing costs : 511 425
576 588
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

7 Staff costs
The average monthly number of employees, excluding temporary employees, of the company during the year, analysed by
activity, was:
2021 2020
Production, regulatory & quality 535 529
Selling & distribution 135 130
Administration 7 68
741 727
The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:
2021 2020
£000 . £000
Wages and salaries 31,655 31,490
Social security costs 3,348 3,265
Other pension costs 2,935 2,819
37,938 37,574
Staff costs include the following remuneration in respect of directors:
2021 2020
£000 £000
Remuneration 1,539 836
Benefits 5 4
1,544 840
Number of directors (who served during the year) accruing benefits under the
company
share award scheme 3 3
Highest paid director:
The highest paid director did not exercise any share options.
2021 2020
£000 £000
Aggregate emoluments ' 728 333

Defined contribution pension scheme accrued pension at end of year - -
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8 Income tax expense
2021 2020
£000 £000
Current tax
Current tax on income for the year 13,328 10,773
Adjustments in respect of prior years 44 (158)
13,372 10,615
Deferred tax
Origination/reversal of timing differences (see note 14) 370 (491)
Adjustments in respect of prior years (see note 14) 299 288
Impact of differing tax rates - 38
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 14,041 10,450

Factors affecting the tax charge for the current year

The current tax charge for the period is higher than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2020: 19%). The
differences are explained below.

A reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 19% to 17% (effective 1 April 2020) was substantively enacted on 6
September 2016. The March 2020 Budget announced that a rate of 19% would continue to apply with effect from 1 April 2020,
and this change was substantively enacted on 17 March 2020. The UK deferred tax liability as at 31 March 2021 was calculated
at 19% (2020: 19%).

An increase in the UK corporation rate from 19% to 25% (effective 1 April 2023) was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021.
This will increase the company's future current tax charge accordingly and increase the deferred tax liability by up to £669,670.

2021 2020
£000 £000
Current tax reconciliation
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 58,866 49,085
Current tax at 19% (2020: 19 %) 11,184 9,326
Effects of-
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 2,352 489
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances (1,001) 2,827
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 865 (2,862)
Origination/reversal of timing differences -~ (72) 993
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years 44 (158)
Current tax charge for period (see above) 13,372 10,615
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9 Intangible assets

Cost

At beginning and end of year
Additions in year
Impairments

At end of year

Accumulated amortisation
At beginning of year
Charged in year
[mpairment in the year

At end of year

Net book value
At 31 March 2020

At 31 March 2021

Accord-UK Ltd
Report and financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2021

£000

43,345
68
(5,137

38,276

31,768

1,439
(2,025)

31,182

11,577

7,094

The closing balance of Intangibles is made up primarily of Marketing Authorisations (£4,716,000) with the balance
being various Trademarks (£2,082,000), Patents (£228,000), and Product Dossiers (£68,000)

10 Property, plant and equipment
Land &
Freehold Plant and  Fixtures & Right-of-Use Construction Total
buildings  machinery fittings assets in-Progress
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost ’
At 01 April 2020 38,260 72,962 2,571 2,318 4,886 120,997
Reclassification - (214) - 214 - -
Additions - - - - 5,458 5,458
Movement in CIP 3,208 2,317 682 279 (6,486) -
Disposals - (4,748) - (170) - (4,918)
At 31 March 2021 41,468 70,317 3,253 2,641 3,858 121,537
Depreciation
At 01 April 2020 7,161 57,231 1,536 245 - 66,173
Reclassification - (194) - 194 - -
Charge for the year 561 3,294 430 364 - 4,649
Disposals - (4,692) - 61) - (4,753)
31 March 2021 7,722 55,639 1,966 742 - 66,069
Net book value
At 31 March 2021 33,746 14,678 1,287 1,899 - 3,858 55,468
At 31 March 2020 31,099 15,731 1,035 2,073 4,886 54,824

Included in land and freehold buildings is land with a cost of £16,234,541 (2020: £14,786,407) that has not been depreciated

during the period.
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11 Inventory
2021 2020
£000 £000
Raw materials 9,577 10,388
Work in progress 6,038 5,784
Finished goods 45,351 43,498
60,966 60,170
12 Trade and other receivables
2021 2020
£000 £000
Trade receivables 27,119 42,275
Amounts owed by group undertakings 40,380 8.819
Prepayments and accrued income 2,283 2,201
69,782 53,295
13 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2021 2020
£000 £000
Trade creditors 18,468 19,239
Amounts owed to group undertakings 12,670 26,636
Corporation tax (1,704) (3,960)
Other taxation and social security 13,588 9.803
Lease Liability 195 27
Pension Liability 336 -
Accruals and deferred income 35,367 38,280
78,920 90,025

Axis Trustee Services Limited has a charge over the Freehold Land and Buildings at our owned Barnstaple
manufacturing plant and offices. .
Amounts owed to group undertakings are on terms of 30 days from Invoice Date.
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14 Provisions for liabilities
2021 2020
£000 £000
Deferred taxation
At beginning of period 355 526
Movement during the period 1,436 (171)
At end of period 1,791 355
Other Provisions 79,245 1,987
81,036 2,342
Other Provisions includes a Regulatory Liability as discussed below.
The elements of the deferred taxation provision are as follows:
2021 2020
£000 £000
leference between accumulated depreciation and amortisation and 2,256 1,725
capital allowances )
Other timing differences (465) (1,370)
Undiscounted provision for deferred tax 1,791 355

REGULATORY LIABILITIES

For over 5 years the Competition and Markets Authority (CMA) had been investigating matters relating to the pricing of
Hydrocortisone tablets in the UK. The CMA issued an Infringement Decision in relation to this matter on 15 July 2021. The
company was acquired by Accord Healthcare Limited in January 2017 and the Infringement Decision relates to matters that
span the pre- and post-acquisition period. A previous owner of the business was responsible for the conduct and management
of the matter in relation to the pre-acquisition period and the company cannot comment further on that period. The CMA
imposes total fines for the conduct of £221.1 million, of which Accord-UK is solely liable for £65.6 million (for the pre-
acquisition period) and Accord-UK, Accord Healthcare Limited and Intas Pharmaceuticals Limited are jointly and severally
liable for £44.4 million (relating to the post-acquisition period). A previous owner of the business is solely liable for £109.1
million and is jointly and severally liable with Accord-UK for a further £2 million (for allegations relating to the pre-acquisition
period). More detail on the nature of the allegations, and the liability of parties based on their respective periods of ownership
of the company, can be found on the CMA’s Hydrocortisone case page (Case reference: 50277).

In respect of the post-acquisition period, the company believes that the whole case against the group, including the level of the
fine imposed by the CMA, is open to serious question and representations challenging the case and many aspects of the fine
were made to the CMA. Now that the CMA has imposed fines on the company, the company and group have the opportunity
to appeal the CMA'’s findings and intend to do so. If any appeal is ultimately unsuccessful, litigation may be issued against the
group in connection with these matters, but at this stage, the existence and outcome of any such litigation is not certain and
cannot be accurately quantified. In light of the receipt of the Infringement Decision, the company has considered it appropriate
to reflect a liability relating to the CMA’s fine in the financial statements. The liability however does not reflect the total amount
of the CMA’s proposed fine and in no way represents any admission, agreement, acceptance or proposed settlement in relation
to the matter or any ongoing and/or future litigation.

Further in relation to this matter, if any appeals are unsuccessful, the group expects to benefit from contractual
protections/indemnification in connection with these matters from third parties for the pre-acquisition period, which would
offset a significant part of any losses suffered by the group. Such protections arise from the agreements relating to the
divestment of the company by its previous owner and its acquisition by Accord Healthcare Limited. An asset for these
contractual protections has been recorded in the financial statements. The additional information usually required by IAS 37 is
not disclosed in relation to these matters because, in the opinion of the Directors, any further disclosure at this stage of
proceedings could prejudice seriously the position of the company and the group.

15 Capital commitments
2021 2020
£000 £000
Contracted but not provided for in these financial statements 1,145 1,380
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16 Lease commitments

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and movements during the year

2021 2020
£000 £000
Lease liability recognised at 01 April 2020 2,073 -
Reclassification 35
Additions 156 2,318
Payments (429) (387)
Amortisation of Interest 65 142
1,900 2,073
Lease liabilities are classified in the statement of financial position as follows
2021 2020
£000 £000
Current lease liability 195 27
Non-current lease liability 1,705 2,046
1,900 2,073
Amounts recognised in the income statement in relation to leases are as follows
2021 2020
£000 £000
Depreciation . 364 245
Amortisation of interest 65 142
429 387

The company had total cash outflows for leases of £429,000 in the financial year ended 31 March 2021.
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17 Called up share capital
Allotted, called up and fully paid 1,527,083 (2020:.1,527,083) ordinary shares of £1 each (2020: £1 each)

Equity shares carry one vote per share and an equal right to net assets in the event of a winding up of the company.

18 Ultimate and immediate parent company

The company’s ultimate parent undertaking is Intas Pharmaceuticals Ltd., a company registered and trading in India. The
company’s immediate parent undertaking is Accord Healthcare Ltd which is incorporated in the UK.

The smallest and largest group into which the results of the company is consolidated is that headed by Intas Pharmaceuticals
Ltd.

19 Pension scheme
Defined contribution pension scheme

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the 12 Months represents
contributions payable by the company to the scheme and amounted to £2,934,877 (2020: £2,845,497).

There were outstanding contributions at the end of the year of £ 377,600 (2020: £359,422).
Defined benefit pension scheme

The company operates a defined benefit pension scheme, the assets of the Scheme are held separately from the assets of the
company. The latest full actuarial valuation was carried out at 1 October 2015 and was updated for FRS 101 purposes to 31
March 2021 by a qualified independent actuary.

The scheme was closed to new entrants on 30 August 2006 and was closed to future accrual on 31 December 2010 at which time
existing members of the pension scheme transferred to the company’s defined contribution scheme. In November 2017, the
trustees of the Scheme entered into a ‘buy-in’ contract to secure annuity policies covering all pensions currently in payment
(together with attaching dependants’ pensions) and the liability for the future benefits for the remaining active and deferred
pensioner members.

The following disclosures relate to the defined benefit scheme alone.

2021 2020
£000 £000
Present value of funded defined benefit obligations (87,527) (73,596)
Fair value of plan assets 87,191 74,499
Asset ceiling - (903)
(336) 0
Deficit
64 -
Related deferred tax asset
Net Liability ' Q) -
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19 Pension Scheme (continued)

Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation

2021 2020
£000 £000
At | April (73,596) (83,644)
Interest cost (1,654) (2,040)
Actuarial gains/(loss) arising from:
- Changes in financial assumptions (15,917) 8,125
- Changes in demographic assumption 241 (147)
Benefits paid 3,399 4,110
At 31 March (87,527) (73,596)
Movements in fair value of plan assets
2021 2020
£000 £000
At 1 April ‘ 74,499 84,690
Interest income on plan assets 1,674 2,066
Return/(loss) on plan assets in excess of interest income 14,417 - (8,147)
Benefits paid (3,399) (4,110)
At 31 March 87,191 74,499
Income/(Expense) recognised in the income statement
2021 2020
£000 £000
Interest cost on defined pension plan obligation ) (1,654) (2,040)
Interest income on defined benefit pension plan assets 1,674 2,066
Interest on effect of asset ceiling
Total 20 26
The income is recognised in the following line items in the income statement:
2021 2020
£000 £000
Administrative expenses : 20 26
Total 20 26

The total amount recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in respect of actuarial gains and losses is a loss of
£1,259,000 (2020 loss: £169,000).

Cumulative actuarial gains/losses reported in the statement of comprehensive income for accounting periods ending on or after
22 June 2002 and subsequently included by prior year adjustment under IAS 19, are losses of £50,705,000 (2020 loss of
£49,446,000).
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19 Pension Scheme (continued)

The fair value of the plan assets were as follows:

2021 2020

£000 £000

Cash and other investments 1,692 451
Insurance policies 85,499 70,048
87,191 74,499

Principal actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages) at the year-end were as follows:

2021 ©2020

Discount rate 2.1% pa 2.3% pa
Inflation — RP! 3.4% pa 2.6% pa
Salary growth n/a n/a

Pension increases in deferment — Pre April 2009 3.4% pa 2.6%pa
Pension increased in deferment — Post April 2009 2.5% pa 2.1% pa
Pension increases in payment — Fix 3% 3.0% pa 3.0% pa
Pension increases in payment — RPI, max 5% 3.3% pa 2.6% pa
Pension increases in payment — RP[, max 2.5% 2.4% pa 2.2% pa
Base mortality table S3PMA/S3PFA S3PMA/S3PFA

Post retirement mortality assumptions

The current life expectancies of a pensioner retiring aged 65 underlying the mortality tables of the schemes are as follows:

Life expectancies at age 65: 2021 2020

Years Years
Current pensioners at retirement age — male 87.0 87.0
Current pensioners at retirement age — female 894 894
Future pensioners at retirement age — male 88.7 88.7
Future pensioners at retirement age — female 91.2 91.1
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20 Share Based Payments

Two share based payment schemes are in place for senior executives of Accord-UK Ltd with the participant choosing either to
be part of an employee stock option scheme (ESOS) which consists of share options of the parent company Intas or an employee
stock appreciation rights plan (ESAR) of the parent company Intas.

As of 31 March 2021 no participant has exercised any options under either the ESOS or ESAR scheme and no shares in the parent
company Intas have been issued. During the year participants in both schemes cancelled vested options under an agreement with
Intas, which led to a revised equity component and is reflected in the financial statements.

Both schemes initial grant dates were | January 2018 with options under both schemes vesting as follows for initial participants:
- 30% 1 January 2019
- 30% 1 January 2020 -
- 40% 1 January 2021

The initial exercise price for ESOS was INR 1,560 per option. Subsequent awards to new joiners were priced as the Intas company
valuation changed.

The exercise price for ESAR was INR 10 per option with an initial base price of INR 1,950 per option. Subsequent awards to
new joiners were priced as the Intas company valuation changed. '

The fair value of the equity of both these schemes is calculated by an independent third party valuation and this is used to calculate
the remaining liability required.

21 Information on related undertakings

The company enters into trading transactions with fellow group companies, details of which have not been disclosed in the
financial statements as the company has availed of the exemption in FRS 101 paragraph 8, available to those companies whose
financial statements are included in those of its parent and which are available to the public.

22 Investment in Subsidiaries
Holding % Value £'000
Mar-21 Mar-20 Mar-21 Mar-20
Non-quoted
Accord Healthcare Ireland Ltd 100% 100% 33,867 33,867
Accord MENA DMCC 100% 100% 9 9

Accord Healthcare Ireland Ltd is incorporated in Ireland
Accord MENA DMCC is incorporated in Dubai

23 Post Balance Sheet Events

On 15" July 2021 the Competition and Markets Authority (CMA) issued an Infringement Decision in relation to
Hydrocortisone tablets in the UK. See note (14) for full details.

On the 5th August 2021, Axis Trustee Services Limited signed a Deed of Release and Termination, releasing their charge over

the assets of Accord-UK Ltd. This was as a result of Accord Healthcare Ltd having repaid all amounts owing under the 2016
Facility Agreement it entered into with Axis Trustee Services Ltd.
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We draw attention to the disclosures made in niote 34 to. the: consolidated financial statements concerning
the uncertain outcome of the penalties imposed by the Competition and Markets Authority in UK (CMA)
velatinig to the pricing of Hydrocortisone tablets in the UK, where the stepdown subsidiary company is one
of the partes subject to an Infringement Decision. The stepdown subsidiary company has made
represenfations challenging many aspects of the allegations made by the CMA. whe issued their final
decision on [5 July 2021. A provision for the potential liability that may result has been made in the
cofisolidated financial statements, however the ultimate outcome of the matter is uncertain. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this-matter:

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directofs is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information ificluded in the Director’s report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do n6t
éxpress any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, ourresponsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there. is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Holding Company’s Board. of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms:of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive
income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group including
its jointly controlled entity in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended including the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019. The respective Board of Directors. of the companies
included in the Group and of its: jointly controlled entity are responsible. for maintenance of adequate
accounting records. in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets. of the Group
and of its jointly controlled entity and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid,

In. preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies.
included in the Group and of its jointly controlled entity are responsible for assessing the ability of the:
Group and of its jointly controlled entity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters

related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess management eithex; intends

to hqmdate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but.to.do so. P 7o
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statementsas a,
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor*s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranee is a high level of assurance; but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 6i in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

»  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perfotm audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriaté to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
conftrol.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

- that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible

for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness. of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtairied, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group-and its jointly controiled entity
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a2 material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group and its jointly controlled entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements;
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the eatities or
business activities within the Group and its jointly controlled entity of which we are the independent
aaditors and whose financial information we have audited, to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of the fipancial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which
we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion. e

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such othan ent[tws

included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent audltors ;ééardmg, \
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit ﬁndmgs, inchuding -
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Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of Even Date on The Consolidated Financial
Statements of Intas Pharmaceuticals Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with: our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Intas Pharmaceaticals Limited as
of and for the year ended March 31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial
teporting of Intas Pharmaceuticals Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™) and its
subsidiary company, and jointly controlled entity, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, and jointly controlled
entity, which are eompanies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding
Company considering the éssential comporients of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and. efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to. expréss an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note. on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial ¢ontrols over financial reporting with reference to: these
consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors.
in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference:
to these consolidated financial statements.
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Intas Pharmaceuticals Limited
Consolldated Balance Sheet as at March 31,2021 )
(AN amounts in Indian Rupees millions, except share data and where otherwise stared)

Avat March 31 |
Note: 2021 2020
ASSETS -
Nos-currest assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 34834.71 3449125
Capitad work-in-progress 4 4310,41 3,715.31
Goodwilt s 50.024.52 4728.42
Other Intangidle asscts. 5 893135 9,936.52
Fntangible assets under development 5 279.09 161.87
Finsnclal essets '
Investments 6 3695 1783
Losns 3 8.27 398
Other finencial ussets k] 7017.38 187.13
Deferred 1ax agsels, net L] 426634 3,383.92
Tax sssets, et 9 04604 1.469.48
Otber non-currest assets ‘10 86056 83881 .
1,134626%2 1,02,499.58
Carrent assets
Tnveswories " £0,542.33 45,666.28
Financlal assots ’
Trade receivables 12 27,193,085 381873
‘Loans 3 &4 7.08.
“Cash and cash equivalents 14 32,683.86 8375.5%
Bank batances other than cash and cish equivalents: 5 13116 | 11220
Otlrer financial assets 7 159438 2,625.25
Othes current aasets. 18 $.36s.81 '§,390.82
1.37.530.53 94.192.94
TOTAL ASSETS' 2,31,157.15) 1.96,692.52
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Lo - |
Equity !
Sh’ir; capital 16 134787 { 114740
Other equity 17 1,20,060.87 -95:234:44
1.21.208.64 | 26,381.88 .
Lisbifities -
Neucperent tiabitities
Financial fiabilities
Borrowings 18 17.178.86 +25,916.90-
Oiher financisl lisbilities 34 133747 ‘953,89
Provisians 20 223884 ¢ 153417
Goveramant gramts H] 44,65 5259
Defesred tax liabilities, et 3 19611 ] 2.364.43
) 29.760.83 30.819.08
Carrent Lisbitities. ‘
Financial Tinbilities i
Bor{owlng: , 22 19,698,854 14,955,2‘;I
Tradé payables 3 330726 2120653
Othor financial liabitities 7} 30,78740 29,099.3)
Lisbiflties for current tax, wet- 9 79923 6235
Other current ljubilities - 25 290449 2,550.55
“Provistons 20 195157 1,609.70
Government grants ESS 15820 795
30,187.83 | 6949156
- N
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 23115718 ) 1.96.692.52~
Summary of significant accounting policies 3
The sccampanying iotes are an intégral pirt of these consolidited financiat
Asper our report aof even date atteched’
For SRBC & CO LLP 'For Shati Karia and Associates For and on behalfl of the
Chartersd pecountants ‘Chartered Aceountauts Board of Dircctors of
CAIF gisteatign No. 324982E/E300003 ICAL Flegy Registration No.: [31546W Intas Pharmacenticps Limiied
73??;;‘& S s
r PriynaksShah Nimish Chudgar
Partner Managing Director and CEQ
ip No.: 41870 Membership No.: 113627 DTN: 00212400 L"LV
Place: Mumbai Place: Ahmedabad JSayesh Shah g
Date: July 28, 2021 Date; July 28; 2021 Executive Director
DIN: 02681464
20
Tushar Skroff ¢
Chief Fiaance Officer
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Plate: Ahmedabad
Date: Tuly 28, 2021




Intas Pharmaceuticals Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Lass for the year ended March 31, 2021"
(All amounts in tadian Rupees miilions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Vear ended March 31 ]
Note 2021 j 2020 T
INCOME: : . )
Revenue from sale of products 1,63,244.92 E 1,45,901.13
Revenuc from license fees and services 53628 | 393.58
Other operating income 919.76 | 2,249.99
Reveoue from operations 26 1,64,700.96 ‘i 1,48,544.70
Otber incomé 27 662.54 , 21178
Total Income : 1,65,363.50 | 1,48,756,48
EXPENSES: |
Cost of materials consumed 28 43,028.93 | 40,508.70
Purchases of stock-in-trade ! 16,007.82 . 14,068.50
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and 29 (3.795.07){ (4,012.28)
stock-in-trade
Employee berefits expenses 30 - 25,728,905 | 2420435
Finance costs 3 2,672.71 , 3,752.80
Depreciation and amortisation expense &S 7.102.55 . 7,405.00
Other expenses 32 ! 46,419.87 | 39,828.90
Total expenses v 1,37,164.86 1,25,755.97
bd >
Profit before tax [ 28,198.64 23,000:51
Tax éxpeases: l '
Current tax 44 : 6,533.22 4,886.95
Deferred tax (credit) / charge 44 : (1.2?7.75)\ 1,707.92
Short / (excess) provision for current tax of carlier years 44 45.‘08# -
Profit for the year A) 22,898.09 16,405.64




Intas Pharmaceaticals Limited
Consoludated Stawnent of Proﬁt and Loss. fur the yearended March 31,2021
(AII smourits in Indian Rupees m.mm, except share datn and whcre athermse stated)

) Year.cnded March 31 T
) Note 201 [ 2020
’ Other comprehenszve uwo-e ocy -
;Items that mll be reclassrfcd to profit or loss )
‘Exchange differcndes on translation of foreign operations {85.03) (40.35)
{85.03) ] (40.55):
K Effeeuve pomon on Gmn/ (loSs) on hedgemg instimsnts ) 17.76° '('17;‘1'_5) :
lncomc tax cﬂ"ect 4“4 (3.J0), 3:10
.Nef movement o on cash flow hcdges - : 14668 - - ° (14.66)'
Net gain/(loss) on bedge of nct investment . 3, 166.34 1, 183 4(
lncome 1ax “:ﬁcct(currem) 44 (554. ll) ‘ (206 62) :
Net' movement on hedge of | net mvestment - 2,612.23 1976.79
“Total Items that will bé reclassified fo profit or loss (B) 2,541.86 1921:58
“Items that will ot be Feclassifiéd to profit or loss.
Re-measurement ¢ of dcﬁned beneﬁl plans JJ.OSJF (17I 78)
lnoome t:ax effcet - 44 - (10.33) 120.62°
Nét re-measurermcnt of defined benefit plans 22,70 ,I (142:16)
Total ifems tiat will not be reclassified.to profit or.loss (C) B S - (4
Other comprehensive income, net of taxes (D) = [B+C) 2564561 779427
Tofal other comprehensive income for the year (A) +(D) T 25,462.65 7185067
Attributabl¢'to ol R
Equity holdérs of thé paréit 25:462.65 17,185.06
Exrmng per equlty share (in Rupea) - 35 ' .
Basic' 19952 | - 142,98
Dituted _ 199.26 142.64
[Nommal value ofcqmty per shazeot' Rs.10]
fSurnmary of sxgmﬁcant acoountmg pol |cses; "5
“Thé accompanying 1iOLES até an mtggripaﬂ of thesé Corisolidated firancial Statements. . . .
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Intas Pharmaceuticals Limited

Consolidated Cash. Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021 {77 Year e;nd"ed_Mir_cix y_ - _1
(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, except share data and where otherwise stated) 2021 ! 2020
A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES {
Profic Before Tax | 28,198.64 23,000.51
Adjustments for:
Depteciation and amortisation expense 7,102.55 | 7,405.00
Share based payment (636.10): 188.20
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss, oet 1,299.73 | 3,137.36
Laoss on Sale of property, plantand equipment, et 40.33 | 4a2.14
'Finance incomé . (412.30] (34.26)
Interest cost (in¢luding bank charges) 1,736.51 2,554.12
Allowance for sales return 125.07 297.18
Provision for inventoriés 1,166.28 13.33
Provision for doubtful debts and advances & bad debts/sundry Batances w/ofF 21023 22953
Gain on sale of investment - {s.91)
Intangible assets charged off 7478 -
Government grant amortised: 14231 (4.20)
Qperating Profit before working capital changes: 39,048.03 36,323,00
Adjustments for (increase) / decreese of assets: :
Trade Receivables 6.656.56 | {6,722.95)
Joventories. (5,848.33)t (8,262.58)
Othet Current Assets 2105 1,069.84
Other Non Current Assets ) (30.97) (603.28)
Other non-current financial assets (6,86025)/ {15.82)
Other Current financial assets 1,033.11 | 17.51
Loans (0.95)‘ 224
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) of liabilities: .
Other Provisions 7,954.36 ¢ 29.09)
Trade Payables 2,75542 | (706.55)
Other Corrent Liobilities 44394 121571
Other Non Current Financial Liabilities {228.04) 20.88
Othiér Financial Liabilities 481.49 | 2,719.74
Cash genérated from Operations 4543142 ° 25,528.65
Taxes pdid, net (6,99522), (5,23545)
Net cash from operating sctivitics 38,436.20 | 20,29320
Effcct of exchange rates on translation of operating cash flows: (145.36) 51.38
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATI_]\IG ACTIVITIES 38,290.84 20,344.58
|
BCASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES i
Investment in bank deposits (having otiginal maturity of more than 3 [
months) (18.96) {65.98)
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets including CWIP and
Intangible under development (5,268.50) (10,758.30)
Proceeds from saie of property, ptant and equipment 397.71 ! 46.35
Proceeds from safe of investments, net 0.88 | 2.50
Interest received o 409.69 | 2715
Acquisition of Business - (576.51)
NET CASH FLOW (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES: (4.479.]8):1 (11,324.79).
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Intas Pharmaceutlcals Limited

Consohdated Cash Florw Statement for the year eided March 31,2021 Yexr ended March'31 }
(All amounts in lndian Rupees millions, cxcept share data and where othérwise stated) 2021 -2020
C CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES : i
Proceeds/(Repayments) from: short-tcnnborromng,s 5,!37.11 5,889 23
(Repaymums) of long-term borrawings (9341.02) (6 976 98)
Paymem of lease rent : {37197) (340 17)
Tnterest cost (mcludmg bank charges) ’ ’ (1,736.56) (2.476.37)
Dividends paid nncludfng tax on dividénd distributior - ’ | (153.31)% . (1,368.33)
‘NET,CASH FLOWS' cwmwn FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING: ~ ‘ "6471.75) (5.272.62)
ACTIVITIES '
NET INCREASE I' {(DECREASE)" ‘BN CASH . AND CASH:
. EQUIVALEN'I‘S ‘ 27.339.90 »3 Td’l 18
* Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year : 6,37558" 1981.96
Bank overdraft (Refer note 22) - SRS (1,026.63)! (389.50)
Cash and cash equivalent received nder Acquisition T - . 931
Cash and cash equivalents at tie end of the year < 31.688.861 . .7 .:534895."
Componcnm of Cash and Cash’ Eqmvs!entx for cash flow:: B o B
Cash on band : 457] o2 "
Balanoe  with banks 32,684.29 | ~6.373.19
Toml (Ref:r note M) . 32,688.86 F 16,375.58.
’Lcss Bank overdmﬁ (Rcfa note 22) e T (1,026.63)
‘Net' Cuh and Cﬁsh qun _t}en& .32,688.86' '5,348.95

Reconciliation of liabilities ari‘s‘ing,‘frgg.‘.ri‘qm_lé;i_pg activities

L. = - s

‘Mﬂ‘ﬁ, 2021. ' {%Eﬁn&g‘. : "N:.! Cash ﬂows ‘ ﬁ_gnn;ix;l;a.n“ges Clo-smg!nhnc
%|Short term borrowings” : T 71114955271 4:11048 .. - 632.79'): -:19,698.54
{Long term bomwmgs;_ - ‘ 40,694.88, (9,347.02)[. 31,387.90 32,735.76
f_ Accrued laterest: . " . T s = - R - 150.22 . (1:566.27) :1,566.22:|° 150.17.

Mar 3, 3020 _ ' Omph‘?';{f Net Cash flows | Non cish ehinnes | Clasisg balaice|

Short term borrowings* — T _= o :7,150.28 '6,526.36 . 1,278.63. 14,955.27¢}

Long, term borrowings N - ==l 74570890 . £(6,976.98)| 1.962.96° 40,694.88:
! Acduhd lntece'sl-, R M 136,309, ~ €2,08037]. . . 2,094.29. 150,22}

Summary of stI' cant accounnggpohcxes - e = {3
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Intas Pharmaceuticals umxted
‘Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements is at March 31,2021

1. GROUP INFORMATION

'

Intas Pharmaceuticals. l.lmlted ('the CompanY) is a leading, vertically integrated Indian: Pharmaceutscai
Company with global operanons, engaged in- the. develcpment manufacture and marketing " of
pha rmaceuﬁcal formuiatlonsand is headquartered atat Corporate House, Nr:Sola Bridge,S.G. Hrghway,
Thaltej, Ahmedabad Gu;arat, The consolidated financial statements compnse the fi nancaal statements
of Intds Pharmacedticals Limited (heremafter referred toas "the Holdmg Company”.or “the Company’),
its subsidranes and jointly controlled. entuty (together referred toias 'the: Group‘) The Companvalong

with its subsidiaries has manufacturing locations ‘spread across India, U.K and MEXICO

The consohdated finar ncial statements were authorized for.issue in accordance with a resolution passed

in Board Meetmg heldon Ju]y 28,2021

The consoirdateg fir nanmal smtements .comprise ithe fmancral statements of * the?Company, lntas
Pharmaceutxcals lented and the fallowmg ‘subsidiaries /- step-down subsrd:anes and jomtly controi(ed

ntlty”\l .
Name of the Subsidiaty Company Country % of Halding as at
Accord Healtheare Limited, UK _|UnitedKingdom?| . . 100 :100
Astron Research Limited; UK UnitedKingdom i} ~ ~.  _100f ~  -100).
Accord Healthcare Inc.; North Caroling, USA: USA 100]. . 100
Accord Healthcare (Pty) Uimited; South Africa . [South Africa > 100 100,
Accord Farmaceutica \tda., Brazilt - _Braat 100 100
Accord Healtheare SAC, Peru ‘Perut. ~ 3100 100
Accord Farma $.A; De C.V., México- Mexico’ ‘100]: 100
lAccord Healtheare Inc.; Canada- ~— |Canada’ :108[. 100
Accord Healthcare Pty. Ltd., Australia - . _JAustralia’ 100 100
Intas Third Party Sales 20055.L .. -ISpain. -300{ 100
Farmbaiot 5:A DE CV, Mexico (2)/ .. |Mmexico: ‘100]. 100
Essential Phammaceuticals LLC(3) ™ ~ Jusa, 100 100
Accord Blopharma inc. USA {3) USA. 1100 100}
Accord Healthcare (Kenya) Limited: - Kenya .100 100},
Accord Healthcare SAS, France (1) o France 1007 100
Accord Healthcare BV, Néthertands {4) Nathariand.. 100 100
Accord Healthicare Sociedad Limitada, Spain (1) T " ISpain _ ~ 100 100
Accord Healthcare Italia SRL Italy {1) ftaly:” 100] ~ 300
Accord Healthcare Polska Spolka Z Organiczona Odpowledzialnosda, Poland(l) Poland 100 1100 .
{accord Healthcare AB; Sweden (3): Sweden 100]  -100]
Accord Healthcare GmbH, Austria {5) Austria ; 100] 100
Accord Healthcare OY, Finland (1) Finland s 100 :300{
Accord Healthcare reland Limited; Ireland(8): ireland 100{" :100,
{Accord Healthcare BVPA, Belgium {4) Belgium 100]  -100].
.[Accord Healthcare Limited, Malta (1)’ — Malta, i -100] 100
Accord Healthcare OU, Estonia {1) {upto April 22,2020} Estonia R 100}
Accord Hezlthcare GmbH, Germany ()¢ ) _ JGermany 100 100
Accord Healthcaré SON-BHD, Mayalsia (1), : Malaysia 100 100
Accord Healthcare MENA DMCC (UAE) (8): luae - 100 .100}:
Accord-Healthcare Kft. (6) {w.e.f April 22, 2020} Hungary "100] © <
Accord Healthcare $.R.0., Czech Republic (6) |Czech Republi¢ 100 100



Intas Pharmaceuticals Limited
Notes to the Consolidatéd Financial Statements as at March 31,2021

Name of the Subsldiary Company ‘Country % of Holding asat
R Accord Healthcare Private limited, Singapore (1) T |singapore; ] "~ 100 100
- Accord Healthcare, Unipessoal, Ida {7) Portugal 200{ ~ 100
Actord Healthcare HK Uinited, Hongkong (1) S - Hongkeng 100"  100].
Accord Healthcare SRL; Romania(e) ~ . i ... |romamiat "~ ['. . .00 100]
Accard Haalthcare AG, Switzerland (S)- Switiedand”  ~ 100, _ 100
Accord UK Limited, UK (1) . ~ United Kingdom 100l (200
Accord Healthcare Thailand Limited (‘lhalland) (1) T Thailand. 100 100
Accord Healthcare Korea Limited (1) ) - SouthKorea . c .. .100 + 100
.[S M Herbals Privaté Limited . India °1; ~100}” ~ <1100
i . _ h - : 3 !
Name ofthe Jolntly controlled entity Country % of HoldIrig as at
[atvi-Intas Medicat Davices Private Limitéd - |indra . o )

(1) Whollyowned subsidiary of Accord Heatthcare Llrmted UK
(2) Whollywowned subs:dlary of Accord Farmé S A_’ De C V Me)aoo

(4) Wholly-owned subsrdiary of Accord Hea Ithcare SAS Frf‘gﬁ

(5) Wholly-owned subssdiary of Accord Healthcare GmbH ‘Germany’

(6) Wholly-owned subsrdiary of Accord Heafthcare Polska Spolka F4 Orgamczona
OdpoMedzlalnosua, Poland

{ 37} Wholly-owned subs:dlary of Accord Healthcare Sociedad Limitada (Spam)

(é) Wholly-owned subs;duary ‘of Accord UK Lifnited, UK

2 ;PR\NClP;;s'qr.gogsogggﬁnor{,

subs&duanes and jomtly controlled entuty' as’ at 31LMarch 2021 Control is: achleved when the: Group IS
exposed or has nghts, to varrable retums fromuts mvolvement w:th the'investee and has the ablltty to
affect those retuens through its; power over the invéstee: Specmcally, the: Group controls an; mvestee nc
and onlyifthe Group has

-Power over.the investe€ (i.e. existing rights that give it the cirrenit ability to direct the relevant activities
of the invésteé) ' :

- Exposure, or fights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

= Theability to use its power aver the investee to affect its returns

‘Generally,. there is a presumpuon that a, majonty of voting: nghts -result in control. Tof support ‘this_
presumptlon and. when the Group has less than'a’ majorlty of the' votmg or simi lar tights of.an: |nvestee,
the. Group cons;ders -all relevant ‘facts and:cifcumstances in assessing whether it has power, over an
mvestee, mcludmg

- The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee




Intas Pharmaceuticals Limited -

Notes to the Coiisolidated Financial Statendenits as at March 31,2021 .
- Rrghts arising from other.contractual arrangements.
<The Group’s votmg rlghts and potenttal voting nghts
- The'size of the gmup s holdi ing of \ votmg rlghts relatlve to -the size and drspersion of the holdi ings of the
other voting nghts holders —

-+ The Group re~assesses whether or not, it controls an ‘investee.if, facts and crrcumstances indicate that
there ; are changes to oneor moreof the three elements of control. Consolidation of & ‘subsidiary begms
when the Group obtains controi over the ‘subsidiary and ¢ ceases'when the: Group IoSes control of the
subsidiary. Assets, liabilities; i mcome and expenses of a subs;draryacqurred or rﬂsposed of dunng the year
are: lncluded in‘the consohdated ﬁnancnal statements from the date the Group gains control'until the’
date the Group ceases to control the subsidia iary.

Consohdated ﬁnanmal statements are prepared  using-uniform, accountmg pohcres for.like" transactrons
and other events in similar crrcumstances:!f a memberof the § group uses accountmg pohcies other than
crrcumstances, approprrate adjusanents'are made to that group member’s ﬁnanaal statements'm
preparing the:consolidated financial:statements .t6-ensuré conforrnity with’ the; groups acceunttng
,,polrcres

The financial Statements’of all ientities uséd for the’ purposerof consohdatron are drawniup to same:
repomng date as that of.the. Holding Company, i.e., year ended on' 31st March Whenlthe end of the'
reportmg period of the. Holdmg Company is different from that of a subsrdna ry,. the 2'subsidiary, prepares,

forconsolidation purposes, additional finaricial’ inférh‘i“taon as of the same; date- as'the ,fmancsalr
statements of} “the Holdmg Company to ienable the Holdmg Company;to consolidate the:financial.

informauon of, the subsrdlary, unless itis impracticable to do: 50.:

Consolrdahon procedure:

(a) Comblne like* items: of assets, Ilabllitres equrty, fncomie, - expenses and: cash’ ﬂows of: the Holdlng
Company with" those of uts‘ subsrdcanes For thns purpose, income. and expenses ofjthe subsldfafv are
based on the amounts of the assetsand’ Irabthtfes recogmsed in the consolidated ﬁnancral statéments at
the acqursmon ‘date:

(b) Offset (ehmmate) the ¢ carrymg amount of the Holding Company' s mvestment in-each subsidiary and
the. Hofdmg Company‘s pomon of equrty of each subsrdrary Busmess comhmatrons pohcy explains how
to account for: any related goodwill

{c): Elummate in, full mtragroup assets and. Irabahttes equrty, income, expenses and cash ﬂows relating to
transactions between entitles ofthe group: (proﬁts or losses- resu!tmg from' mtragroup transactions that
are reoogmsed in assets; such: asmventory and fixéd assets;'are ellmmated in full) lntragroup losses may
mdrcate an lmpazrment that requrres recogmhon in: ;the: consoltdated f nancual statements lnd AS 12
!ncome Taxes apphes to temporary. dlfferences that arlse from the elimination of profits and:iosses
resuttmg from intragroup transactions:

Proﬁt or loss and each component of other comprehensive income. (OCI) are attributed to the equity
holders: of the Holdlng Company and to the non—controllmg interests, fevén if this. results in ‘the, nono
controlling interests. havmg a-deficit. balance. When necessary, ad,ustments are made to the ﬂnancral




Intas Pharmiaceiiticals Limited. )
Notes to'the Consolidated Financial Statéments as at March 31, 2021
statements of subsui:anes torbring thelir- accountmg policnes into fine with*the,Group’s ‘accounting

,pohmes All intra-group assets.and- liabilities, - eqmty, “income, - expenses and cash flows  rélating ‘to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in fullon consoiidat:on.

A change inthe ownership interest of a subsidiary; w:thouta loss of control, is dccounted foras an equity:

transaction. If the Group foses’ control over3a subs:dLarV, it: A

- Derecognlses the assets (mcludmg goodell) and liabilities 'of thé subsudlary

--Derecognises the carrymg amount ‘of ; Fany non-contro!hng mterests

- Derecogmses the cumuiatwe translatlon differences recorded in equxty

- Recognises the fair value 6f the consideration received

- Recognises the fairvaiue of any mvestment retained

*- Recognises any surplus or deficitin proﬁt or Ioss

= Redassuﬂes the Holdmg Company s'share of ¢ components prevuously recogmsed ;n 0cl to prof t . OF, loss
r. retdined’ eamlngs, as appropriate, as'would’be requured nf the Group had directly. dusposed of the

related asse's or Iiabmtnes

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . . .
{a) Basis of preparation of consolidated financlal stiteménts-

The'consolidated financial statements have been prepared and presented in accordance with the, Indian

Accountmg Standards (”Ind AS") notxﬁed under‘the Compames (lndlan Acoountmg Standards) Rules,

2015 (as amendedfrom tvmeto txme) and presentatlon requurements of Division Il of schediie Hil to the

Compames Act ZOISv.(lnd As? comphant Schedule Ill), as appllcable‘to the consohdated financial®
statemeiits.

These consohdated financial statemeénts have béen prepa red onthe hustonca!cost convenuon andon: an
accrual basis, except for the followmg matenal ltems in the balance sheet

i emp!oyee defined benefit assets/(habahty) are:recoghised’ as the net total of the fair. value of.plan

assets, plus actuarial losses, less Actuarial gains and the present value of the defi ned ‘benefit obhgaﬂon
i Long~term borrowmgs are . measured at amortized cost using the effecuve intérest rate.méthod; and

ifi; Derivative financial mstruments at fair vaiue and

v, :Certam financial: assets and liabilities;measured at fair-value. {refer: accountmg pohcy regardmg

fi nancnal mstrument)

These’ consolldated fi nanc:al statements are presented in: Indnan rupees, which isthe funct«onal currency’
.of the Holdlng Company Al flnancaal mformatlon presented. in:Indian’ rupees’ has beenirouhded to'the
mtlllon (Rs 000 000), except where otherwise indicated.




Intas Pharmaceutncals Limited’
Notes to the Consolidated Financizl Stateménts as'at March 31,2021

(b) Use'ofestimates, assimptions and ju‘d’grpent,s

u‘c)‘

The preparation of consolidatéd financiaf statemems in conforrmty with.IND AS requires management
to make Judgments, estlmates and aSSumptlonS that affect the application of accounting policies and the’
reported amourits: of :assets, Ixablhtaes income and expenses. ‘Actual resilts’ may “differ. frof these-
estimates. i

The consolldated f*nancia( statements provtde comparat:ve information in respect of the prewous penod

Z'In addnﬁon the Group presents an additional balance sheet at the beglaning ¢ g of the precedmg penod when.
‘there Wisia ‘retrospective-, applncat:on of an ‘accounting pohcy, a retrospectwe restatement, or a

reclassification of items in: f‘nancval smtements

7'Bnmates and underlymg assumptions arereviewed on an: ongomg basis: Revisions’ to accountmg‘
estimates: areirecognised.in the periodin which:the’ estumates are rewsed and in.any future penods
affected: In particilar, mformatxon aboit sigmﬁcant areas of- estnmatuon uncertainty and critical
judgmentsin apptyung aocountmg poliaes ;that have the most. ﬂgn'fcant effect On the amounts
recogmsed in the financial statements is included in the following' notes

<Measurement of recoverable amounts of cash-generatmg units { Refer 3(c)};

- Useful lives of, property, plant and equipment and inmngible assets { Refer 3(f} and 3(g)});
- Valuauon of inventories {Refer 3(1 Wi

- Employee benefits { Refer qm)k

- Provvsnons contmgent hab'uty and contingent assets (Refers(s)},

- Sales returns { Refer 3(k) },

- Evaluaticn of recoverabllrty of deferred tak assets {Refer. 3(o)};

-Sharé’ based .payments: {Refer 3(n)}

Business combinations and goodwill

.Business combinations are accounted:for usmg ‘the: acqwsmon method The cost of.an. .acquifsition is
meastired 3s the aggregate ‘of the consuderatlon transferred measured at acqutsitlon date fair.value and:
the amount of any non-controllmg Fnterests inthe acqulree ‘For.each.business ‘combination;, the Group‘
elects whethef to.measure 'the non-controllmg tinterests in the. aoqunree at fair va;lue or at-the
proportronate share of the acqmree s identifiable net assets.: Acqutsmon-related costs are expensed as:
mcurred

Atthe acqu;smon date; the identifiable a dssets gcquired and the flabilities. assumedare recogmsed attheir
acqmsmon -date fair values. For ‘thls purpose, . the“liabjlities ‘assumed include’: contmgent liabilities
representmg present obhgatlon and they are measired at their acqu:sntuon falrvalues lrrespectlve ofthe
fact that ‘outflow of resources: embodymg economlc beneﬁts is not probab!e
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When’ the Group acquires a business, it assesses’ the financial ‘assets and liabilities :assumed for
appropnate classification ‘and dessgnatuon 'in accordance with ithe contractual lterms, e_conomrc
circumstances. and pertinent: concllﬁons as’at the acquusutuon date. Thrs mcludes the :séparation’of
embedded derivatives in host cantracts by. the acquuree. -

- If the business combination is achiéved in stages, any previously.held equrty mterest is re-measured at
its: acqu:sntlon date fair value and- anv resultmg gam or:loss.is recogmsed in, proﬂt or loss or 0Cl,-as

approprlate

acqutsmon date Contingent conSIderatlon classified as an aset or liablllty thatls afi nanoal mstrument
:and within the scope of ind-AS 109 Financial Instruments is measured at fair value w:th changes in; ifair

“value reoogmsed in profit or, foss.. lf the contmgent consideration is not within the scope of ind'AS 109; it*
ils: measured in.accordance with the appropriate: ind-AS.iContingent cons:deratlon that is- classnt" ecllasl

equtty is notre-measured at subsequéent reportlng dates and subsequent |ts settlement is accounted for
within equity.

-Goodwill is initially, measured atcost, belng the excess of the aggregate ofthe consideration transferred
and the amount reoognlsed for non-controlling mterests, and: ‘any previous interést heid; over the net
identuf‘ able assets acquared and lrabnlltles assumed Hf the fair value of the net assets acqu:red isin excess

of the assets acquired and alf of the liabulmes assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the
amounts to be recogn ised at the acquisition date. (f the reassessment stlll results in an-excess ofthe fair
value of net asséts acqulred over, “the aggregate consnderatnon transferred then the gam |s recogmsed in
OCl and accumul;ted in: equrty as capital reserve. However, if ithere is o

purchase the’ entity. recogmses the gain directly in’ equ;tv as caoltal feserve, wtthout routlng the same
through OCl.

After initial’ recogninon,"goodwnll is’ measured at cost less “any accumulated lmpatrment losses. For the
purpose of vmpalrment testing, goodwnll acqunred ina busmess comblnatlon us, from the acqu isition date,
allocated to each'sof the Group S mshgenemung units that are. expected to benef tifrom the
combination,; irréspective of whether otherassets or lnabllmes of theacqulreeare assngnedto those units.

-A cash generating unit to which goodwull has béen‘allocated is tested for lmpaurment annua ily, or more
frequently ‘when theré is an lndlca'uon that the umt may be (mpalred i the recoverable amount of the
cash generatmg unit is less than lts carrymg amount, the lmpalrment loss is allocated first to reduce ﬁwe
.carrying amount of any goodwﬂl allocated to the unit and then’ to the other: assets of. the unit pro: rata
‘based on the ¢ carrylng amount of each’ asset in, the unit, Any lmpalrment loss for goodwll is recogmsed
in‘profit or.(oss. An |mpa|rment loss recogmsed for goodwnll is:not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwrll has been allocated to a cash-generatmg unit and part of. the operation, within. that unit:

is dlsposed of - the goodwill. assoclated wnth the dnsposed operation:is included in the carrylng amountof-

the operatlon when determmmg thegam or loss on disposal: Goodwill disposed in these cwcumstances
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is; measured based on the. relative values of the- dlsposed operation . and the port:on iof the cash-
generatlng unit retained. .

lf the lmtlal accounting fora business combmatlon is incomplete by the end of the reportlng penod
whrch the combination’ occurs, ‘the: Group reports: pro\nsmnal amounts for. the: Jtems for. whnch tbe-

- accountingjis mcomplete. Those provrsxonal amounts. are., ad}usted through goodwill dunng the.

(d)

measurement period or: addmonal assets ofliabilities are: ‘recognised, to reflect-new information:
1r.vbt::uned about facts and circumistances that existed at the acqwsltlom date that, if. known,-wou ld have'
‘affected’ the amounts recogmzed at. that date. These, ad;ustmenes are; called as:measurement perlod ’
adjustments "The measurement penod does not exceed one vearfrom the, acqulsmon date.

'investment in joint venture,

A ;omt venmre is: a type sof Jomt arrangement whereby- the parbes that‘have: joint’ control:of;the
.arrangement ‘have nghts to the net assets of the joint venture Joint'control is the” contractually agreed
shanng of control of an: arrangement, which xusts only W when cleorsuons about ‘the relevant actwmes
freqwre unanlmous consent of the parties sharmg control

The considerations made in’ deterrnmmg whether srgn ificantinfluénce or jomtcontrol are similar.to'those
‘necessary to determine control over. the subSIdlanes

‘The Group smvestments in ns jolntventureare accounted l'or rusing the equlty method; Under theeqmty
method the mvestment m 1omt venture is; mltially reoognlsed aticost. The carrymg ;amount (of the
mvestment isad jUStEd 1o recognlse changes inthe Group 'S shareo'f netassets of the jonnt venturesrnce
theé: acquusnsgor:_‘ date ~Goodwilt~relatmg to the Jomt,venture lsuncluded in; the ‘carrying amount of the
investment and is not tested for Fmparrment mdM ually

The state ent of “of; pnofZ t and loss reﬂects the Group S share ofithe results ,of .operations: ‘of: the jolnt
ventu re. Any change in OCl of those mvestee is presented aspart ‘of thé Group s OCKIn’ addtlon, when
there has been a change recogmsed dlrectly in the equcty of the jomt ventu re the Group recogmses ns
sha re ol’ anychanges, when applrcable in thestatement of changes in equrty Unreallsed gams and losses-
resultlng from- transactlons between:the- Group and the: joint veniture are eliminated to the extent of the,
interestin the joint venture.

lf an:entity’s share: of losses ofa jomt venture equals or.exceeds its interest in the jomt venture (whlch,

includes any Iong termiinterést that‘ in'sﬁbstance form. part of the Group s net. mvestment in-or.joint
venmre), the entlty drscontmues recogn rsing lts share of further losses Addluonal lossesare recogmsed
only to d1e extent that the Group ‘has'incurred: Iegal ot constructive’ obligations or. made payments on'
behalf* of the joint venture: If: the* Jomt venturessubsequently reports proﬁts, -the, entlty iresumes;
recogmsmg its; share of t those proﬂts only after its; share of the prof ts.equals the share of losses-riot.

recognrsed
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The aggregate of the Group s share of profit or-loss of a joint venture is-shown on'the face of the
statement of profit and loss..

Tl'teﬁnanmal statements of the joint venture are prepared for the'same reporting period as the Group..

When necessary, adjustments are made to. bring the accounting policies in lme wuth those of: the Group.

After applicatlon of the eqmty method the Group: determines whether ltls necessary to recognise an

- lmpalrment loss on-its investment in.its joint'venture. At each reportmg date, ‘the Group determlnes
whether there is objective ewdence thatthe mvestment inthe Jomt venture s lmpa:red 13 there is such.
evudence, the Group calculates the amount of lmpalrment as the: dlfference between.the récoverable
amount of the joint venturé and'its carrymg value, and: then recognISes the loss as “Share of profi tof a
_Jointvénture’in the statemenitof, profit of.[0ss..

Upon {oss.of s«gmfcant inflience over the joint control over the Jomt venture the Group- measures and‘
2cognises any retalned lnvestment at ltS falr vajue. Any- difference between the carrying amount ‘of the.
jolht"r enture:upon  loss of slgmficant influence: or. joint; control and the fair value of the rétained:
finvéstment and. proceeds from dlsposal is- recogmsecl in proflt or loss.

(e) Current and Non-Currént classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities. in the balance.sheet based .on.-current/ non-current.

‘An assetis treated as current when it is:

g Expecbed to be rearsed or, mtended to be sold or.consumed in:normal operating ‘cycle

- Held pnmanly forthe purpose of tradmg

< Expected to be reallsed wulhm twelve months aﬁ:er the  reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equlvalent unless restrnctecl from bel"ng exchanged or used to settle a Hiability for. at least

twelve months after the reporting period:
Al other.assets are classified-as non-current.
A liability is‘cufrent when:

-ltis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle:

-Itis held pnmanly for the purpose of.tradlng

- lt is d uetobe settled withm twelve months after the reporting period, or.

-There is no. unconditional. right to'defer the. settlement of the llabuluty for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

‘The group classifies all other liabilities as non-current, Deferred tax assets’ -and liabilities are classified as
non-current assetsand liabilities.
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The operating cvcle is the time between'the aoqulsrtlon of assets for processmg and thelr reallsatron in
‘cash and ¢ash equrvalents Thegroup has ldentrﬁed twelve monthsas msoperatmg cycle

(A Property, plant and equipment . -~

Récognition and measurement o -

The items of | prdperty, ‘plant and’’ equment are ‘meast "red at:cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated |mpalrment losses;:if any., The cost: comprises of its purchase pru:e and other.incidental
expenses that are dnrectly attnbutable tothe vau isition'of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets
includes the:cost of: matenals and other r:osts dlrectlv attnbutable to bnngmg the asset to.a: workrng
condmon for m mtended use, when slgml‘ cant parts of plant and equrpment are requ ired to be replaced
at mtervals, the Group deprecxates them:. separately based on th eif. specrﬁc useful lwes. Borroﬁnng cost

YR R

attnbutable to acqursxtron or constructron of qualrfymg flxed asset.s 1is: capltallzed to respect:ve assetsa

of f xed asset is added touts book: value only if it lncreases the. future benet‘ ts from the exrstlng assetl
Beyond its prevnously assessed slandard of performaoce

The cost of stores and spa res which' quahfy asproperty, plantand equnpment IS recognlsed in the canying:
amount of the. ltem if, lt is probable that ‘the ‘future economic benefits embodied withir the part will flow
tn the Group andiits cost can be measured reliably.:The costs of repairs and maintenance aré Srécognised;
in the statement of profit and loss as incurred::

- - -

The cost of replacmg part; of an, |tem of property plantand’ equnpment is recognrsecl in‘the carrymg
mount of the |tem ifitis probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the § part wllltl

to the Oompany and lts costcan:be measured rellably When- slgmf‘ cant parts of plant and equnpmen’t“

are requrred to'be replaced at intervals, the Groupdeprecrates them sepa rately based on thelr specrﬁc

useful lives..

o in. ,.n.

Cap|tal assets :under erectlon/nstallat«on are stated at cost'inithé: Balance Sheet as: "Capltal Work:in-
Progress )

Gams or losses ansmg from de—reoogmtlon of property, plant and: equlpment are measured as the
d:fference between the net dasposal proceeds and the ¢ carrymg amount of theasset andare recogntzed
in the Statementof Profit and l.oss when the asset is de—recogmzecl

Depreciation,
DepfeClatton is recognised on pro- -rata basis.in, the ‘statement of profit and 16ss. on’a: stralght line basis

;over. the estlmated useful fives of property, plant and equlpment Leasehold’ Land ls amortlsed over the
ipériod of the leaseLandiis iot deprecnated
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‘The: group, ‘based on: technical- assessment: made” by technical expert :and” management esttmate,
depremates certain items of property, plant and equipment over esbmated useful Irves Wf’llch are
drfferent from the useful I‘fe prescnbed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013 “The. management
belre\tes that these estimated useful hves are realistic and reflect fair. apprOXI imation of the peraod over
‘which the assetsare hkely tobe used

- The estimated qseful lives are as f_O"QWS:": ~—- -
:Type'of Asset’ . .|:Useful life {in years);
Buildings.. T “'1'30to 50 ."
‘Plant and Machineries™ "'{10t0 20
- ‘Fumituré, Fixtures and‘Equipment | 4to 107 _ _  __
.Computers’ . |3w6 . |
:Vehicles_.. . | 4to10: T

The’ residual ‘values, useful‘lives and method of- depreciatien of property, plant and equipment are.
reviewed-at each financial year end-and adjusted prospectwely, it appropnate

(8} Intangible assets arid afirtization

.Goodwill
Apart from goodwill onamalgamatuon asreferred below, the goodwill is initially measured at cost, bemg
rthe excess. ofthe aggregate of consrderahon transferred over netidentlﬁable assets acqulred and. (i abllnty

Goodwnll anslng on, amalgama'aon hasibeen reoogmsedl\in saccordance with7court | schemefand is
amort:sed over'its. estlmated useful fife . of ‘10! years Further, guodwrll‘on amalgamatron |s tested for~
'impairment 3t éach réporting date,

-Otﬁerdnta’ufgiiﬂé’assét’s

-

lntangnble assets aoqunred separately are measured o mrt!al recogmtlon at cost. The'¢ostof mtangfble
assets cquared ina, busmess combination.is theirfair.value at the date of acquisition: Following initi

' 'reoogmtxon Intangibie assets are. carned at, costiess any accumufated amortisation and accumuiated
mparrmentlosses lnternally generated intangibles are i ot Eapitalised’ except f development cost
whrch are classiﬁed as. mtangnble in developmentand the related’ expendlture |s<reﬂected in proﬁt and
foss in the period inwhich the expenditure s incurred. .
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Research and development ' - .

Expendxture on' research activities’ undertaken wrth ‘the prospect of galnrng new scientific or technical
knowledge and understandmg are recogmsed in the $tatement of profit and loss when'incurred..

Development activities involve a planor desrgnlfor the: productron of new or substanttally rmproved
s developmentcosts can be measured mllabw,

~the product or.process is technrcally and commercrally feaslble,

- future econonuc beneﬁts are probable, and

- the Group mtended to- and has. sufﬁcrent resources to complete development ancl ito use or. sell the‘
iasset.

The expendrture to be capitalised inclide the cost 6f. matenals and ¢ other costs dlrectly attrlbutable to:
_pféparing the asset for its’ Intended use., Other development expend lturesare recogmsed as expense in
the statement of proﬁt andloss as incurred:

‘Payments to:third. pames that generally take ‘the form of up-front:payments: andjmilestones for in*
licensed: products compounds and: mtellectual property are capltallsed 'if such products havé received
regulatory approval.or if. only- perfunctory actrvltses remam (i.e. no. addmonal work ‘necessary; e.g:
blostudres, regulatory, etc.) and approval is highly probable

Acqunred research’and development mtalnglble assets that are under development.are. recogmsed as
|mang;blerassets under development,“lhese assets;are:not;amortised, but’evaluated for: potentral
impairmention anﬂannual “basis or when there ‘afe indications: thatgthe carrylng value may,not be
recoverableAny |mpa|rment charge on ‘such asséts is recorded as an expense.in; the statement of proﬁt
ancl Joss:

Subsequent expendlture onian mdprocess research or. developmerrt proyect acquired: separately ot ina
busrness combmatton and recogmsed asan mtangrble asset is:

- recogmsed asan expense 'when.incurred, if it is research expend” ture,

--recogmsedeas an expense when rncurred if.it'Is.development; expendlture that does not. satrsfy the
cntena for recogmtron asan rntanglble asset; and

--added to the. carrymg .amodunt.of the. acqun'ed |n-process research or, development pro;ect, rf |t is-
development expenclxture that satisfies the recognmon crltena

lnmngrble assets relatrng to. products i development, other intangible assets not avaitable for,use and-
inmngrble assets havnng mdeﬁnlte useful lrfe are subject to impairment testing at each: repomng date.
‘All other mtangrble assets are tested for. rmpalrment when there- are mdlcatlons that the carrying value‘
rmay not be recoverable. All rmparrment losses are recogmsed |mmed|ately inthe statementof profit and

loss.
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Amiortisation - .

.

Amortisation-is recogmsed in the s:atement of proﬁt and lossion a stra;ght—lme basxs over, the estlmated
useful Ilves ofmtanglble asseb' oronany, otherhas:s that reﬂectsthe pattern in'which the asset’s futire
economic beneﬁts are expected to be consummed by the’ enhty lntanglble assets that are not avallable
for use are amortised from the date they are avallable for.y use .-

.Type of Asset. . - Useful life {in years)
3| Licenses and commercial tights |, 3:t0:15 -J:
| Marketing autharization 1]'5.t0:10. .
|| Technical knowhow :5to 10! o
| Others Sté'lo;_ e e

‘The: amortlsatlon penod and the arhortisation method for mtang|ble assets wrl';h a'finite, useful llfe ‘are;
‘réviewed’ at each reportlng date. .

De-recognition of intangible assets

‘Intangible assets are de-recogmsed ‘either on their dlsposal or where no futiire economlc beneﬁts are
expected from'their use. Loses anslng on such de- recogmtlon are’ recorded m the statement of proﬁt
and loss,and are measured as the dlfference between the netdlsposal pmceeds. if 3 any, and.the' carrying
amount of respectwe mtangrble assetsason the date of de~recognmon.

impalrment of Non-Finanicial: ASséts. -

The Group assesses ateach’r reportlng date,whethenthere :s  an mdlcatlon thatan assetmay be lmpalred
Ifat any indlcatlon exxsts or when:ann ual lmpalrment testmg foran asset i regulred the Group estimates
the asset's recoverable amount.. An asset’s recoverable :mount is’ the hugher of an? asset’s or cash»
generating: unit's: {Ceuy fa_ir valiie: 1ess: costs of. dlsposal and its; value in-use. -Recoverable amount: s
determmed for an| mdwldual asset, unless the asset does: not generate cash'mflows that are largely
mdependent of those from other assets or: groups of assets: ‘When. the carrymg amount of an, asset or,
CGUY rexceeds its’ recaverable amount, ‘the asset is consmlered :mpanred and is: wrltten down totits'
recoverabie amount.

in’ asessmg value in- use, the estlmated future cash flows are dlscounted o thelr .present value using a:
pre-tax dlscount rate, that reﬂects current ‘market assessments of the time value of i money and the risks’
specnﬁc to the asset. In determlmng fair value fess costs of disposal, récent market transacl:fons are taken,
into-account. if no.such tmnsactvons can \bé identified, an appropnate valuatlon model is used These:
calculatlons are eorroborated by valuatlon multiples, quoted share prices for publlcly traded companies’
or other available fair vaiue indicators.
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For assets excludung goodwill, an assessment is made at each reportlngdate to detérminie whether there
is an Indication that prewously recognised rmea ifment losses ho. longer exist or, have decreased, lf such
mdlcatlon exlsts, the 6roup estlmates ‘the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount’A prevrously recogmsed
rmpalrment loss is reversed only if. there has been a change in the assumpnons used to determme the
“the! carrying amount of. the asset - does- not -exceed its: recoverable amount nor exceed the carrymg
amount thatwould bave been d etermlned netof deprecratlon, had no impairment loss been recognised
for.the asset in prior.years. Such reversal is recognised in the: smgergent ‘of profitor.loss..

-Goodwill; s fested; for impairment annually:as at year end and when circumstances indicite that the’
'mrryi‘ng value may be impaired.

lmpamnent is: determmed for. goodwdl by assessmg the fecoverable amount of each’ CGU (or group ofi
CGU's) to which the goodwnll relates. Whén the recoverable amount of the CGU is less’ than rts carrying,
amount, an impantment loss:is recognised lmpalrment losses relatlng to: goodwlll’are nat revérsed:in
future perlods

eases’ -

The Group assesses atcontractmceptlon whether acontract is, orcontams alease ﬂThat is; if thé contract
conveys: the: nght to control the use of ‘an identified asset for a: “period: of time- in exchange: for
consideration.

Group asa lessee

The Group applres a smgle récognition.and. measurement approach forall leases, ea(cept for short-term '
leases and léases of low-valieassets:The Group recogmses |ease l:abrlitres to makellease payments and
nght—of-use assets representmg the nght touse the underlymg assets.a

(i) ‘Right-of-use assets

The GrOUp recogmses rlght-of-use assets-at.the:commencement date; of the lease«(ie, the daté'the
underlymg asset is: avarlable for use)., Rrght-ofvuse assets are: measured:at cost, Iess,any accumulated-
deprec:atlon and’ lmpairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of léase liablhtues The costof,
.nght-of-use assets mcludes the amount of lease fiabilities: recogmzed llnitral dlrect costs mcurred ar?d
lease paymentsr made at or before the commiéncement date less any lease mcentrves rer:erved 7Right-of—
luse assets are deprecaated on'a’straight-line basis over the shor‘ter of the Iease term and the estlmated
ruseful lives of the assets, as follows:

'[Tvpe of Asset. | Useful life (in years)/
Leasehold Land |'Up to 99 years
*Office Premises ;10 to 20 years

If ownership of theleased asset transfers to the. Group at the' end ‘of the lease term or the cost reﬂects'
the exércisé of a purchase option,.depreciation is calCulated ysmg the estlmated uséful Ilfe of the asset:

The: nght-of-use assets are also subject to lmpalrment Refer to.the.accounting pollaes in section. (h)
lmparrment of non-ﬁnanClaI assets
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(i) Lease Liabilities:

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group | recognises lease liabilities: measured at thej present
value of Iease payments to be. made over the lease term. The lease payments, inclucle ﬂxed payments
(lncludmg in substance’ fixed | payments) less any lease incentives’ rece‘vable, varrable lease payments that
depend on-an index or a'rate,’and:amounts éxpected to'be’ pald under resudual value guarantees. Ihe
lease payments also include the exercise pnce ‘of 3 purchase option reasonably certam tobe exermsed by
the: Group and payments of penalties: for termmatmg the lease if the Iease term reﬂects the ‘Group
exercrsmg 7 the optnon to'terminate: Variable lease payments. that do pot depend onan mdex orarateare
recogmsed as expenses lunless they are lncurred to produce mventorles) in the period in which the event
or.condition that trlggers the payment occurs,

In calciilating the, present value of, Iease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowmg rate at the.
lease commencementdate because the interest rate implicitin the lease is not readoly determmable. ‘Ater.
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilitiés is mcreased to reflect the accretlon of mtere&
and reduced for the lease payments made ln addmon ft

i payments) or. a change in: the assessment of an optlon to purchasethe underlymg asset

"The Group’s s'lease liabilities are included under. financial liabilities (see Note 44).

‘Inventories

linventories consist of raw materials; stores and spares,. work—tn-progress packlng meterrals and finished
goods "anid:: are measured at, the lower of cost: and net reallsable value. The cost of all. categones .of
mventones ls'based on the we:ghted average: method. Cost Includes expendntures mcurred in, acqumng
the mventones, productnon oF conversion’costs and other costs lncurred in brmgmg them to theu' exxstmg
location and. condmon ‘I the case of. ﬁnrshed goods. and work-m-progress“ cost includes an: appropnate
share of overheads based on normal operatmg capacrty .Stores'and: Spares, :that da’not; quahfy to be
recognrsed as property, plant and: eqmpment consrsts of engmeenng spares (such as; machmery spare
pa rts) and consumables (such as lubncants, cotton waste and o;ls), whlch are usedin ‘operating machineés
or oonsumed as mdlrect materials in the manufacturmg process

Net reafisable value is the estimated selling Price in'thie ofdifiary coiisé of business, less the estimated.
costs of completion and selling expenses.

Provision for diminution:in value of inventories has been made‘:for'expired,;obsolete,:non'-'moving'a'n‘d‘-
slow-moving inventories as per the management’s estimate.

Revenue from contract with ctistonié?s

Revenue from oontract with custorner IS recognlsed when control ofthe goods or.services are transferred:
to the customer atan-amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to beentitled in-
exchange for those goods or services:Revenue is measured atthe fairvalue of; the eonsnderatron recelved'
.or receivable, takrng mto account contractually defi ned terms of payment: and excludmgtaxes or duties
collected on. behalf of the' Government. The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal.in its:
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_revenue arrangements becatise it typically controls the goads or services before transferring them to the

customer.

“The disdosures ofsrgmﬁcantaccountmg judgements estimates and assumptxons Feldting to revenue from

-contracts with customers are provided below

sale ofproducts:' .-

Revenue from sale of | product is reoogmsed at'the point'in time when contiol of the asset is transferred
to the customer genenally on. delrvery of the’ ‘product..The normal ‘credit term varies from 7:to, 90 days
upon delivery.

The Group consrders whether there are other; promrses 3n the contract that are separate performance

traneactron prlce for the sale of product the Group consrders the’ effects of varrable consrderatron and’
consrderatron payable to the customer, (rf any)

‘Variable consideration

i theiconsideration- in a contiact inclides¥a- varrable amount th Group estrmates the amount of -
consrderat»on to’ whachrrt will' be entrtled in: exchange for. transferrmg the goods to’ the: customer. The"
vanabie consrderation is estrmated at contract inception and constramed untrT itis hrghly probable that a.
significant revenue reversalin the amount of: cumulatrve revenue recogmsed wrll .not occur when' the.
associated uncertainty with the vanab{e consrderatron is subsequently resoived: Contracts forthe saleof
products provide customers with a: nght "of return and volume rebates“'The nghts of § return and volume
-rebates grve rise to variable’ consrderation

License fees - .

chense fees prrmar‘!y consrst ofi income fromthe out—lrcensmg of inteliectual | propem/, and other
llcensing and supply arrangements wrth rvanous parues Revenue from licensé fees is recogn rSed when )
control transfers to. the thard partyand the Company S performance oblrgatronsare satrsﬁed Some of
these arrangements mclude certain: performance obllgatrons by the Company Revenue from such
arrangements is recognrsed inthe penod in whrch the' Company completes all rts performance

obhgations.

Rights of return:
certain contractsand stamtoryoblrgatronsprovrdea customer with 3 right t to retum the goods. The Gmup
accrues for sales retim’ baSed on hrstorrcal experrence, market condrnons and specrﬁc contractua!terms

,qu goods that are expected to be returned instead of revenue; the’ Group recognrses a'refund lial bal 1ty A

rrght of retum. assetand correspondrng adjustment to changé in mventory is arso recogmsed for the rrght
o recover products froma ‘customer..
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Volume nebates

The Group provndes retrospecbve volume rebates to certain customers once the quantity of products
purchased dunng the period exceeds'a threshold specified in’ the: contract. Rebates are offset . against
amounts payable by the customer.To estimate the vanable consideration for the expected future rebates,,
the Group applies the most flikely amount method for. cornitracts with-a smgle—volume threshold and the
expected value method for contracts with.more than one volume thréshold. The selected method that
bestpred«cts the amount of variable consrderauon lsprrmanlydrwen by'the numberof volume thresholds
contamed in- the contract. The Group then applresthe requirements on constraining estimatés of variable’
conssderatron and recognises a refund habuhty for.the expected future rebates’

Provision for cha'rgeback rebates and discounts

Provisions for. chargebagk rebates dvscounts and Medlcald payments are, esumated and’ provrded for,in
the \year, of sates and recorded as reductlor\ of revenue. A chargeback clarm is-a: clatm made by the‘
and the net price at. whnch itis agreed to be procured from the Group Provrsrons for. such chargebacks
are calculated on the basns of hlstoncal expenenCe and specrflcterms inthe individual agreements.

‘Shelf stock adjustmeénts

Shelf stock adjustmentsare credits issued to customers to reflect decreases in the selling price of products
sold by the Group, and are accrued when the prices of certain products dechne or at4 the  point of sale, rf
the: Impact of a.price decline on the products sold cani be reasonably estrmated based on'the mstomer’s
mventory These credits.are customary m the pharmaceutrcalvmdustry and are-intended to reduce’the
customer,lnventory cost to better. reflect the:cufrent market prices The" decnsmn to grant a shelf stock
adjustmenttoa customerfoltowmg a price decrease is made atthe Group‘s dnscretuon.

Profit 'share"r'e'vemie's

The Group from. trme to time enters: into: marketlng arrangements with.certain businéss partners for. the
sate of uts products in cenam markets. Under such arrangements, ithe Group Sells its: producs to the
entltfed to ‘3 proﬁt share whrch is over and above the base purchase price. :I'he profit share'is typxcalh[
dependenton the business partner’s ultimate net sale proceeds or net proﬁts subject to any, reductlans
-or adjustments that are requtred by the. terms of the arrangemenr “Such arrangements, typrcally require
-the business partner to provide conﬁrmat«on of units sold and net sales or net profit computatrons for the
products covered under the arrangement.

--Revenuein an amount equal to the base purchase pnce is recogmsed inthese transacuons upon’ delwery

‘of products to the business: ‘partners; An addrtronal amount, representing the proﬁt share component is.
recognised as revenue in the. penod which’ corresponds to the:ultimate sales of the products made: by
‘business partners. only when' the collectability of the profit share becomes probable and a; rehable
‘meastirement of the profit share is available. Otherwise, recogmtion is deferred to a subsequent period
pendmg satisfaction of such collectabrlrty and measurabllrty requirements. in measuring the amdunt of-
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- . -z profit'share.revenue’to be: recognlsed for each perlod ‘the Group uses all availab!e ‘information and"
ev'dence, lncludmg any conﬁrmatlons from the busmess partner ofthe pmﬁt share amount Giwed to the
Group, to. the extent: Made available:before theé date the" Groups Board of D«rectors authonses the.

= issuance of its financial statements for the -applicable penod . -

Sale of | buﬂer stock ’ - -

- — -

.- éRevenue does not mclude sales ofpharmaceuticals products witha repurchase’ obligation to Department:

- \of Halth of UK Govemment..

‘Contract balarices ™ -
-Trade recewables

A recelvable represents the Group s nght to-an amount of f considération. thatis unconditional (i.¢ e only'
the passage of trmers required before paymentohhe consrderatron is due) Refer to, acoountrng polxcnes

receuved consoderanon (or an: amount of oonsuderatron is: due) from the customer If a customer pays
consrderahon\;hbefore the Group? transfers goods or: services to: the customer ia contract® Itabnlrty is

recogmsed when the payment ismade of the payment is due (whichever is earluer) Contract‘lia’bilities are

recogn ised'as revenue wh vthe Group performs under the, contract

Assets and liabilitiel afising from Fghts of return: ’ -
Right of réturn assets: .

. Rnght of return asset represents the Group s nght to recover the goods expected\to be returned by

wd_;cover the goods,undudlng any. potentual decreases |n the value of the retumed goods *The Group

‘updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any, revisions to'its expected Ievel of retums, as well
asany additional décreases in the value! of. the retumed products

-Refund liabliitles_

A refund habrlity is the obhgatuon to refund some or, all of the consideration’ recewed (or recewable) from:
the oustomer and rsmeasured at the amoiint the Group ultimately expects it will have to retum to the.
customer. Thé: Group updates cts estlrnates,of refund Ilabrhtres ,(and the; correspondmg change in: ithe,
transactlon prrce) at the end of each reportlng perrod Refer to above: accountmg policy;; on vanabfe'
consnderatzon -

(Cost to obtain a contract.

The Group pays sales commission to its c[earing and forwardmg agents as a percentage of sales. made by
them ‘Ihe Group has elected to applytheoptlonal practical expedlent foroosts t0 abtaln acontract which
allows the Group to. immediately expense sales commissions’ (mcluded under other expense)
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Cost to fulfil a contract i i.e freight, insurance and other selllng expenses are remgmsed as an expense in
the penod in.which related revenue is recogmsedr

- Interest*lhcome .

Interestincome prlmanly comprises of intérast from. term deposrts with banks and on loansto subsldrary
: companles rnterestmcome is recorded using the effectlve interest rate (ElR) ElR is the rate that exactly
dlsoounts the estlmated future cash receipts overthe expected life of the financial i mstrumentor a shorber

- perlod where appropnate, to the gross carrymg ‘amount of. thefi nanclal asset.

‘Export Incentives

) Export lncentlves are recogmzed asincome when right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is-
‘establlshed in respect of. the exports. made. and! twhen there is 7io* *sighifi jeant uncertamty regarclmg the
‘ultimate collection of the relevant export prooeeds

5(_l) Foreign’ currencies

The Group s consohdated ﬂnanelal statements are presented in Indian. Rupees; whichils‘also the Holding:
Company s functuonal currency For, each entlty the Group determmes the functuonal currency and ltemSa
lncluded in the financial statements ofeach ent|ty are measured usmg thatfunctronalcurrency The Group
uses the d‘rrect method of;¢ consolldaoon and‘on d15posal of al forexgn operation the gain or’ 1555 that is
reclassified to proﬁt ot Toss reflacts the amount that arises from dsing thrs methdd:

Transactions and balances

¢ l'ransactlons in. forengn currenmes are translgted to the respective functhnal currencies of entitiés within
the Group at exchange rates atthe dates of the transactions:

Monetaryas‘sets and liabilities denommated in forergn curfencies’ atthe reporung date are translaaed lnto
the functicnal currency atthe’ exchange rate at thatdate Exchange differences anslng on the settlement
of. monetary rtems or.on tlanslatcng monetary ltems at rates dlﬁerent from-those at which’ they were
translated: on; mmal recogmttomdurmg thei per:od orin: prevuous flnancral statements are: recogmsed in
the consolidatéd' statemem: of prof t and‘ O ss iy the pernod in; rWthh they anse

'value ln a forelgn currency are translated usmg the exchange rateslat the date whemthe’fa,'lr velue |s
determlned The  gain or,lossarlsmg on translat!on of non-monetary ltems measured atfalr value i treated
id |fferences on. utems s whose. faxrvalue -gain ot 105§ is recogn lsed |n OClor,profit ortlossare also rec0gn|sed
inoc orprof torloss, respectively)

Exchange drfferences anslng on:manetary, items that are desrgnated as part of the'hedge of the Group S
netinvestment ofa forergn operatlon These are recogmsed in: OCI untll the net mvestment is. dlSpOSEd
of, at which'time, the cumulatlve amountis reclassrf‘ ed to prof tor loss
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Forengn exchange gains and losses ansmg from a monetary item receivable from'a forergn operatron,the
settlement of which is neitherplanned nor fi fikely in'the fo reseeable futu re, are consrderedto form part of
thenet mvestment inthe forergn operation and are recogmsed in other comprehenswe mcome/(loss)and
presented wnthln equityasa part of forelgn currency “translation reserve ("FCTR”}

in case of forelgn operations whose functional, currency is: dn‘ferent from the Holdmg Com_panys
‘functional’ currency, the assets and lrabrhties of such foreign operatlons, mcludmg goodwm and fair value;

" ,adjustments arlsmg upon acqunsmon, are translated 1o the presentauon currency ‘at exchange ratésat the.

repomng date. The'income and: expenses ‘of such: foreugn operatrons are translated tof the presentation=

»currency at. the monthly average exchange rates pl;evarﬁng dunng the 'year. Resulting forengn currency=
dnfferences are recogmsed in other, comprehenssve mcome/(loss) ‘and presented within' equity as part of
FCI'R When a’fore:gn aperation’is. drsposed of in part or in full the relevant amount in: the FC]' R as.,
‘transferred to the consoﬁdated statement of proﬁt and Ioss

v

(m) Emiployéés rétirement and other,benefits

fShori-t"enn employee benefits,

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as'the rélated seivice'is provrded A* i3 hll‘ty is recognlsed for
‘the ‘amount expected o' be: pald if. the Gmup has a present legal or. construcuve oblngauon to pay this
amount as a resu it of past service provrded by theemployee and the' obllgatron canbe’ estimated rehably

Defined contribution +plans’

The Group s conmbutlons to: deﬁned contrlbutlon plan in the form: of Provu:lent Fund‘“Employees State
and Loss as and when the servroesare received from the employees The Company has no obligatron other
than these ‘contribitions.

Defined benefit plah”s‘u

schemes The costs of provudlng benef ts under these plans are’ determmedgort the basrs of, actuanal
‘valuationat each year-end Separate aotuarual valuatron lis: carned out for each plan usmg the pro;ected
uhit credit method.

Remeasurernents ompnsmg \of actuarial garns and tosses, the jeffect of ‘thé- assetzcerlmg, excludmg’,
:amounts’ mduded in‘netiintérest.on the'net deﬁned beneﬁt l'abulrty and th etum on: plan assets:
(excludmg amounts mcluded in net rnterest ong the net deﬁned beneflt li ty) are- recognxsed
|mmedlately ln the batance sheet w:th a correspondrng debit o7 ¢rédit to retained” earnlngs through OCI
inithe: period in’ whidhi: they occur. RemeaslirementsTare ot reclassrﬁed to proﬁt or Ioss m subsequent

penods.

The assets'of the (penswn schemes are; held separately frOm those of ‘thes Group in lndependently
admlnlstered funds ~The defined | pension scheme asséts are measuréd’ usmg market values ", quoted
securltles the current bid price is taken as market value Pensron Schieme habtluties are measured using 3
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pro;ected uhit method and. dlscounted atthe current rate of return'on a* hlgh quahty corporate bond-of

-equuvalent term and ‘currency to. the nablrtv

The pension scheme surplus. (to the extent that it is: recoverable) or deficit ns’recogmsed in: full The
movement in the scheme is split between operatmg char rges, ﬁnance |tems and inthe statementiof total
recogmsed gains and losses, ctuarlal gams and losses. The penslon scheme balance is récognised het of
any. related deferred tax balance with the recognition of any deféfred tax asset following the princnples
descnbed in the deferred tax accountmg pollcy above

accumulatxng compensated absences as the addltsonal amount that the Company incis asa’ result of the
unused entltlement that has. accumulated at the reporting date. Such medsurement is based on actua nal*
valuatuon asat the reporting | date carried out by a qualiﬁed actuary

(0} ‘Share-based payments -

'Employees of the! entities;in ‘the Group receive remuneratlon in} the for:n of share-based payments,.
rwhere!::y “employees render services as, consnderatxon for equrtv “instruments- (equrty~settled
transactrons) ’

The cost ‘of equity-settled transactnonsns determined by the fair value at the date when the| grant nsmade
:using an appropriate valuation: model

Jhat costrs recognised togedter wrth 2 correspondmg increase in‘share-based payment (SBP) rese(ves
|n equnty, overthe penod in.which the. performance and/orserwce oondntlons are fulfllled in: employee
‘benefits’ expense: The'cumulative expense recogmsed for equrty-settled transactsons at each! reporting
'date untll the vesting date. reﬂects the extent to. whrch the vesting penod I'has expxred ‘and the Group s
best estlmate of the number of equ lty instruniénts that will ultlmatelv v”e”st' “The statement ef prof“ t and
16ss expense or credit fora a penod representsthe movement in cumulatnve expense recogmsed asatthe

begrnnmg and end of that perlod and s recogmsed in employee benefits expense

Serviceand non-rnarket performance condntrons are nottaken into account when determlnmg the gmnt
date farr value of awards, but the l‘kelrhood ofthe condmons belng metis assessed aspart of the Group s
best estlmate of the: :number, of equxty iinstruments that, wm ultrmately vest.. Market performance
conditioris are reflected within the| gra int date fair, value Any other conditions attached to an award but

'wrthout an, assocrated servfce requurement are: consldered to be non-vestmg condrtnons Non-vesung

iunless there are also sérvice and/or performance condmons.

‘No expense’is, recogmsed for awardsthat do‘not ultimately’ vest because non-market: - performance-
and/or sérvice conditions have not been met. Where awards lnclude a, market or non-vestmg condition;
the transactlons are; treated as: vested rrrespecnve of. whether the market or. non—vestlng oondltron is
satisfi ed prowded that ail other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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The dilutive effect of outstanding options is: reflected ‘as additional share dilution‘in the co mputation-of-
'dduted earnings per share. -~

Cash-settled transact:ons o -

A habmty is recogmsed for the faif value of cash—settled transactions. The fair value is measured mitzally
and at each reporting date up to and including the settlement date; with changes in fair value recogmsed
in employee beneﬂts expense -The fair value is expensed over the period untnl the. vestmg date.with
recognmon of a correspondmg luabmty The fair vatue is"determined using’ a bmomial model further
details of ‘which-are ‘givéh: in"Note '42. The” approach used to. account for vestmg condmons when
measuring equtty—settled transactions also a pplles to cash~settled transactxons.

Income tax

Current Income Tax

Current i mcome tax assets and liabilities ¢ are measured at the amount expected | to be recovered from or
pald to the taxat:on authormes The tax rates and tax lawsused to compute the amount aré’ those that"
are enacted or. substantwely enacted at the: ‘reporting ‘date in the countries where thé. Group operates
-and generates taxable income.

-Current income tax relatmg to items recognised outside | proﬂt or. toss is recognised c outsude profit or loss
*(either.in other. eomprehenswe lnoome orin equtty) Current tax items are recogmsed in correlation to
:the underlymg transaction either: ‘in-0CI; ,or dlrectly in equrty Management penodlwﬂy»evaluates-
posmonstaken m r.he tax retums with respectto .ntuatnons m whrch applmbletax regulatronsare subject:

o

The tax currentiy payableis based oOn the taxable profits for. the years. Current fncome tax |s measured
at the-amount expected to be‘"pald to the tax authontles i, accordance wuth the. Income:tax Act, 1961
enacted in) lndra Management penodlcallv evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with® respect to
situations i rn which applicable tax: regulatmns are SUbjEdl to mterprehtlon and considers whether it is;
probable thata taxatron authonty wuﬂ accept an uncertatn tax. treatment The Company shall reﬂect the’
effect Ofuncertamty for each uncertaintax treatment by usmg either most likely method or expected
value method dependmg on whxch memod predicts better resolutaon of.the treatment The tax rates

ren.ortl_ng da_te

Deferred Tax

‘Deferred tax (is recogmzedaon temporary: differences between the: carrying amounts.of assets.and
Habmtles in the Consolidated Financial Statements afid:the oorrespondmg SEAX bases used mn the
computation of taxable profit under Income tax'Act; 1961,

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary dlfferences However, in.case
:of temporary differences that arise from initial’ recognmon of assets orllabthtres ina transaction: (other
than’ busmess combmanon) that affectne:therthe taxable proﬁt nor the accounting prof‘ it, deferred tax:
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liabilities 2 are ot recogn ized. Also, for temporary differences i if any: ‘that may arise from initial’ recognition
of goodwrll deferred tax liabilities are not recoghized. - B
Deferred tax assets are generally recogmzed for all deductrb!e temporary differences to the exterit itis
pnobable that taxable proﬁts will be available against. which those deductible’ temporary drfference can '
be utilized: In case of temporary differences that arise from initial recognrtron of assets orli l‘ablhtres ina
transaction’ (other than busrness combrnatron) ﬂtat affect nerther ‘the taxable proﬁt nor.the accounting

profit, deferred tax assets are not recogmzed

‘The carrymg amount of deferred tax assets is revnewedat theend of each: reportrng penod and reduced-':
to the extent that it i is.no: tonger probable that’ sufﬁcrent taxable profits.will'be avarlable to-allow’ the}_
benefits of 'part or all of such deferred tax assets to'be utilized:s -

Deferred tax assew and Irabrlmes ate measured atthe tax ratés that have béen enacued or suhstanuvely
:enacted. by the balance sheet daté and'are expected to apply to taxable nncome m the years dn; whrchf
those temporary drfferences are expected to'be recovered or settled.

‘The deferred tax'assets (net) and deferred tax lrabihtres (net} are determmed separately for the Parent~
ande €ach subsrd fary.company, as per. therr applrmble IaWS and then aggregated <

Pre‘semation’of”cuxrent and deferred tax:

-Current and defen'ed tax are: recogmzed as. income, of, an'expense in:the Statement of Proflt and'Loss
'except when they relate toitems thatare recogn ized in OtherComprehensive lncome, m whnch case; the
current ‘and’ deferred tax mcome/expense are, recognrze in)OtherComprehenslve Income. ‘The Group
‘offsets current tax assets and current tax {ra bihtles where it has a. legalty enforceable right to’ set off. ﬁ'ze
recognrzed amolntsand whére it intends either to settle ona net basis or.to  realize the assetand settle
the habnl'ty sl multaneously ln case of deferred tax assets and deferred ‘tax lrabil‘ tnes, the same are'offset
n‘ the Group has a fegally enforceable rrght to set off oorrespondmg current tax assets agarnst current tax '
Tabifities and the deférred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities’ reiate toincome taxes levred by?he same
tax authority on the Group. -

Mmimum alternate tax (MAT) paid ina year is charged to the statement of profrt and loss as currerrttax
the. Company wrllheabte to set.off. agamst the normal income tax during. the speciﬁed perrod X ¢., the
period’ for:which MAT. credit is: allowed to be camed forward In the. year in whrch the Company
recogmzes MAT credtt as an asset rt is created by way of credrt tothe statement of proﬁt andloss-and
ishown as part of deferred tax asset. The’ company reviews the “MAT.crédit entrtlement” asset at each‘

,reportmg date'and writés dowri the sset to the extentthat it rs nélonger probable thatrt wi it pay normal’
- tax during the spécified period.
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- - For units which ¢ enjoy tax hollday benefit, deferred tax assets and liabilities have been. provrded for.the:
tax consequences of. those temporary, differences between the carrying values of assets and fiabilities
and their respective tax bases that reverse after the tax holrday ends

{p) Earnings per share; —

Basic eammgs per: share is ‘calculated by div:dung the net’ pror"t or loss’ attnbutable to equlty holder of
- Ho{dmg Company by the weighted’ average number of equrty shares outstandmg during the penod

Forthe | purpose of calculatmg dlluted earnmgs per’ share, the net profitor. loss for the period attnbutable
to eqmty sha reholders of the Holdmg Company and the wenghted average number of shares’ outsmndungr
during the penod are ad)usted for.the effects’of all" ddutwe potential equrty shares; which] mcludes all
.stock’ optzons granted to employees

(q) Einancial instruments:

A ﬁnancral |nstrumentrs any contractthatguves rise to a financial assat 6fone entity and af' nancoal fabrhty
or. equlty instrument of afiother entlty

Financial assets
Initial récognition and measurement
All ﬁnancial assets are recognised initially at fair value pIus in the case of financial a'SSets not recorded at
fair, value through proﬂt or loss, transaction’ costs that are  attributable to the acqunsmon cfthe ﬁnancral
asset. Purchases orsales of ﬁnancial assets thatrequnre dehvery of assets within a time frare’ established

by reguiatlon or convention‘in the market place (regular way, trades) are recogmsed on Lthe trade date,
X e., the daté that the Group commits to purchase orsell the assetf

Subsequent measurement

For | purposes s of, subsequent “r‘neasurement fi nancnaf assets are classrf’ed in four, categories:

- Debt rnstruments atamortlsed cost

- Debt |nstrumems at falr value through other comprehensnve income (FVTOCI)

- Debt fnstruments denvatlves and equlty mstruments at'fair,value: through proflt or.joss (FVTPL)
- Equrty mstruments meawred at'fair value through othef. comprehensrve _Angome (FvTOCI):
'Debt instruments'at amortised cost .

A ‘debt instrument’ is measufed at thé amortised cost if both the following conditions are met;

-a).The: asset is held wnthm a busmess model whose, ob;ectlve i$ to:hold assets: for ooilectlng contractual
cash ﬂows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates toicash flows that are solely’ payments of
pnncrpal and rnterest (SPPI) on the prmcopal amount outstanding.

After in mal measurement, such hnancaal assets are subsequently measured at amortxsed‘ cost usnng the
effectrve interest rate (EIR); method -Amortised cost is calculated’ by taking mto ac cou 'any d:scount or
premrum on acqmsrt(on and’ fees or costs that are an'integral. part of the EIR The EIR. amorttsatzon is
mcluded in.other income 'inithe statement of profit and Ioss The losses ansmg from |mpa|rment are
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recognlsed inithe statement of proﬁt ‘and loss. This category generally applies:to trade’and. other
receivables.

Debt instriment at FVTOCI ' - - . -

"A“debtinstrument’ isﬂcla_ssfrﬁei:(?_as_at‘“it‘he‘iﬁ\ffa_@ if both of.t'f\e réilbWin'g criteria are met:

" a) The objecuve oftthe busmess model is achieved' both- by collectmg contractual cash ‘flows and’ selling

the ﬁnancral assets and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI..

Debt instruments included within.the FVTOC| category are measured |mtxallyas well as:ateach reportmg‘,

:date at fair. value: Fair value’ movements'ar reoogmsed m;the other comprehensrve moome (OCI) On"
derecogmtron ‘of’ the sset, cumulatwe gain or 1oss prevxously recogmsed in: OCI is reclassified to:the’
smtement of proﬁt and léss. lnterest eamed whllst honmg FVTOC! debt instrument IS reported asinterest:
wncome using the ElR method : :

bébfinstrumeritat FVTPL

FVTPL isa residual category for debt instruments. Any: debtunstru ent wh |ch does not meet the cntena \
for categonsatnon asat arortised cost of 3§ FVTOC, Is classrfied as’ at FVTPL.

In addftlon, the' Group mav eléctto desugnate adebt mstrument whi rch oﬁwerwrse fneets amortised cost
or( FVTOCI crg;er:a, as at FVTPL'Howeuer, such electnon is atlowed only if domg so reduces or.eliminates a
measu’Femeht fr cognmon mconsustency (referred toas” accountlng masmatch') ‘The Group’has: -not

desugnated any. debt instrument as at FVTPL,

Debt: msu'uments inciudéd wrthm the“FVTPL /category arermeasured” "at fair’ value with all: changes
recogmsed in the statement of. proﬂtand Toss.

Eunity: invéstments’

d

All’equity invésthients iniscope, of IndiAS! '1097areim

heldfor’ -tfédiné'.anrg,ciiﬁﬁnéent [éonsideratio cpgmsed by an acquurer in:asbusiness éombination'to
Wthh'll’\d AS103 apphes are classufied as at FVI'PL.-_Fon all otherequrty instruments, the Group may make
an irrevocable election to present in other comprehenslve income subsequent changes in the falr value

easured at farr value Equnty mstruments which are

The Group makes such electron onan: mstrument by-mstrument basis! The classiﬁzztmn IS ma de on mitualt
rreoogmtion andis is wrevocable rlf the Grcup decxdes to classrfy an equ |ty mstrument asat FVTOCI then all.

......

Group may. tra nsfer the cumulatwe gam ‘orlbss w:thin equnty

Eauity inStruments.mcluded wlthin the‘FVTPL category are measured; at fair value with;all changes:
récognised in the' statement of proﬁt and Ioss

—_
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- Derecogmtton : -

A ﬁnanciai asset (or, where appllcable, 3 part ofa ﬁnancial asset or part of 3 group of sumilar financial

- The rlghts to recewe cash. flows from the asset have explred or

- The Group has transferred fts nghts to recewe cash ﬂows from the asset or-has assurried an’ obllgation.
to ‘pay- the recelved cash ﬂows i full without material delay to a third" party .under:a pass— ugh’

arrangement and erther(a) theG’roup has transferred substanttally all the'risks’ and rewards of the asséi,-
or {b) the Grouo has nesther transferred nor retained’ substant:ally “all the rlsks and rewards of the asset .

but has transférred control 6f the asset:

‘When'the Group has transferred its rfghts to recelve cash‘ﬂows from an asset or has entered intoa . passs:
‘through’ arrangement rtevaiuates |fand towhat extent it ha's retamed the nsksand rewa rds of ownership..
‘When ith has’ ne:ther transferred nor,retained substantlallv all of the rlsks and rewarcls of the asset,'nor
transferred contro of theasset, me Group commues to recogmse the transferred asset to the extént of-
the Group S co ui_ag mvolvement In, that case, the Group aiso recognises’an associated liability’ The:
transferred *asset and” the assoaated Ilabihty arelmeasured on. a'basis’that reflects? the Jrights’a and'
obbgauons thatthe Group has retained. i . i

Impanment of flnancial asséts

‘inaccordance wnth ind AS 109;'the Group applnes Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognmon of impa:rment Ioss on the fo!lowmg fi nanc:al assets and credit risk expasure:.

_‘i}i‘ Fmancua! assets that are. debt mstruments,,and aré'measured'at amortiséd ,cost e. g Ioans,
debt securmes, deposns, and’ bank balance.
(i) tradereceivables

The Group follows sumphﬁed approach' for recogmtton of |mpa|rment Iossallowance ontrade rec_e;vables
_which do'not contain‘a s:gnlflcantf“ nancing component

The apphcatr\on of smphﬁed approach does not reqwe the Group to track changes in crednt risk. Rather,
itr recogmses lmpalrment loss ailowance based on Iafetrme ECLs at each reportmg date, nght from its initial:
reeognmon i

Financial liabilities:

’Imtlal recognition and measurement,
Financial liabilities are dassnﬁed at initial recogmtlon, as ﬁnancnal lwabllmes at'fair value through proﬁt or
‘loss, loans’ and borrowmgs, payables, oras, dernvatwes desvgnated as hedglng mstrumem:s in an effective

‘hedge, as approprlate
All financial: Irabllntues are: recognised inmallv atfair, value and, in'the case of loans’and borrowungs and’
payables, net of ¢ dnrectly atmbutable transaction costs.

The Group s financial Habilities include trade and other: payables loans and bormwmgs including bank
overdrafts, financial’ ‘guarantee contracts and derivative’ ﬁnancnal mstruments
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. Subsequent measurement = _

The measurement of financial iiabilities depenés'on their classification, as described below:

Frnanaal liabllitles at faur value through profit or foss’

Financial liabilities at fair. value through“profit ot loss mclude ﬁnancial Iiabﬂ‘ties held:for, tradmg and
"ﬁnancral liabilities: designated upon -nitial’ recognmon as at»_farr value through proﬁt OF loss.“FinanmaI
liabilities are classified as héld for trading if they are lncu rred for the purpose of repurchasmg in ;the near
term: This category also includes’ derwatuve ﬁnanaal instruments entered mto bv the Group that are not
designated as hedgmgmstruments ln hedge re!atlonships as deﬁned by, lnd AS 109: Separated embedded
denvattves are also classified as: held for- trad‘mg unless thev are desrgnated as effective hedgrng
instrumens

+Gains or losses on Tiabiiities heid fertradingfare recognised i the statement of profit and'loss..

‘Fmancral Tiabilities' designated ‘upon initial" reoogmtron iat farr value Kthrough proﬁt or, Ioss are; desrgnated'
-a$ such' at the m'tral date of i recogmtion, and only rfthe crrtena in’ lnd AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities .
desrgnated as FVTPL fanr value gams/ Iosses attnbumble to’ changes in‘own credit risk : are recogmsed mx

00 These gams/ losses are notsubsequently transferred 10 the statement of proﬁt and loss. HoweVer h
‘the’ Group may transfer the cumulatwe garn OF | !oss wrthm equuty All other changes in fair,value of such.

habihty are recogmsed in'the statement of proﬁt and foss. The. Group has'not designated any.financial
liability as fair value through profit and loss.

‘Firiancial guarantee contracts-

i nancral guarantee: contracts issued by the Company are those contracts thit require a: payment to'be
made to- rermburse the Holder.for a'loss it i mcurs bewuse the speqf ed ‘debtor farls to,; ma"ke 3 payment
when duein accordance wuth the terms ofa debt mstrument Fmanc:al guarantee ‘contractsare recognnsed
|n|t|al|y as:a l‘ab1rtv at fair value ad;usted for transaction: costs that are’ -directly attnbutable,,to ‘the
{ssuance of the: éuarantee Subsequentiy, the l‘abihty is’ measged at the hugher of the amount: of Ioss
allowance détermined ‘as per, mpanrment requuremen's of ind,AS! 108 and-the amount” ‘recoghised iess
cumufatlveamorbsat\on

‘Loans and borrowings

After, initial recogmtion, mterest-beanng loans and borrowmgs are subsequently measured at amortised.
cost using t the ElR method

Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilitiés'aré derecognised.
as well as through the EIR amd’rtl'satidn process.

‘Amortised'cost is calculated by takmg mto account any. drscount or. premlum on acquisition:and.fees or

costs thatare an lntegral partofthe ElR The EIR amortisation is included as financé costs in thestatement.
of proﬁt and loss.
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Dérecognition : - - - .- . .

Af ﬁnancnal liability is derecogmsed when the obligation under.the llablrty is. dlscharged or cancelled.or
expires: "When an exnstmg financial Ilab:lrty Is replaced by ahothér. fmm the same lenderon substantlally
dxfferent terms ‘or the’ terms ‘of an extstmg llabllity are suhstantta[ly moduﬁed such an; exchange or.

The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recogn ised in the sfatement of profit and lass. .
Derivatxve,ﬁnancnal instruments

Initial recognition and édbse&j’dent measurement

L g

g edge: ns forengn currency nsks H mterest rate, respectrveiy Such derivative financial instriiments’

are mmatly recogmsed at falr value on the date on wl-uch aderivative contract is entered’ifto and | are
.subsequently re-measured at falr value. Derlvatnves are carried.as financial assets when: the fasr value is
-positive and as i nancnal ‘liabilities when the fair valué is Shegative.

'Anygams or losses arising | from changes in the fair value of denvatuveﬁ are taken dlrectly o) proﬂt or loss,

except ‘for the effective portion of.cash flow’ hedges, wh |ch is recogmsed in, O and later reclassiﬂed ‘tog
profi torloss when the hedge «tern affects profitd or loss or treated as basisad justment lfa hedged forecast
transaction subsequently resuits in: the recogmtjon of a: non-f‘ nancial asset or.non:financial llabihty

For the purpase of hedge accouriting, hedges are classified as:

» Fafr value hedges when hedgmgthe exposure to changes in the 'fair value ofa recogmsed asset or
I|a blf ty oran unreoogmsed firm commltmerrt .

N o

» Cash flow. hedga when hedgmg the exposure: to vanab:l ity ini cash ﬂows that is either attfibutablé to:
a part;cular Fisk assocnated w«th a recogmsed assetor, hablhty ora. hughly probable forecasttransactnon
or the fore|gn currency nsk In an unrecogmsed firm commitment -

»:Hedges of a nét investment in a foreign operation;

At:the inception:of:a hedge’ relatronsh:p,,the‘Group fqr__rnally { es»gnates and :documents the hedge
relationship to:which the’ Group wnshes to apply hedge accounting and;t

and stratégy for undermking the hedge The _documem_auon'mcludes the company’s risk management
objective and's stra}egv for.u undermkmg hedge the hedgfng/ economac relatlonshtp, the’ hedged iter"or
transa'ctlon, nature of the nsk bemg hedged hedge ratuo andihow the <ent|ty will jassess the
effectweness f changes m the hedgmg nnstrument’s fair, va!ue in offsettmg the expostire to'changés in
uthe hedged ltem’s faur vaiue or, msh “flows attrtbumble to. the hedged irisk”Such: hedges are expected to
be hlghly effectnve m achlevmg offseftmg changes in! falr value:OF cash flows and aré assessed: o on an
ongoing: bas:s ‘to” determme that they actually have beéen highlyeffective: throughout ‘the'fi nancxal‘
1reportmg periods for which th ey.were designated

‘uses; derwauve i nanual instruments such as’ forward currency contracts: and:interést rate’
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- ‘Cash flow hedges C - -

The effectwe portron of thegarn orlosson the hedging unstrument is recognised in OClinthe cash flow
hedge reserve, whrle any. meffectrve portron is recogmsed mmedrately i the staterment of proﬂtand
loss: The Company uses forward currency, contracts and interest rate swaps as hedges of s exposure
to forexgn currency risK in forecast transactronsand firm commitments, The ineffective portion’ relatmg
to forelgn currency cootracts is recogmsed in finance costs:

- Amounts recogmsed as OCfare, tranisferred to’ proﬁt ofF loss when, the hedged transactlon affects proﬁt
or loss, such'as Fwhen the hedged fiancial income 6r finanicial expense is recogmsed or when a. forecast

sale occurs!

= — -

If the hedging rnstrument "sed wnthout replacementor rollover. (as
part of the hedgl : t rate 0 1tion as a revoked or whenithe hedge no longer
meets the crlterra for hedge accountung, any cumulatn‘re garn or.loss previously recognrsed in OCtremains”’
separately m equrty until theforecast transaction occurs or.the forengn currencyf'rm commitment lS met.

-

{1} Cash and cash equivatents: .

Cash and cash equivalent inithe balance sheet compnse cash'at banksland onrhand and short -termi

- ldeposrts wrth an onglnal rnatunty of. three months ‘of; Iess, whleh are: subject ta an}msrgmﬁcant risk of
~\changes in value

(s} Provisionis; contingent liabilities anu'contingéﬁ:hags'eg

’ctrve) as a: result of'
- past event, itis pnobable that an outfiow of i recour‘ses embodylng economlc ben will;be_req u red to
tle the’ obllgatlon and a; rehable;estimatev 1be made of the amount’ of t the obﬁgatzo ‘Whenithé
-Group expects some or. all’ of apro ision to e reimbursed for example, under ai an msurance contract,‘

the! rermbursementlus:recogmsed as: a separate asset t onfy when the relmborsemen ,\ts'wrtually.

pee ~al

Certam 3 The' expense relatrng to a: provlslon is. presented in the :statement of Srofit and loss netof. any'

B P

re'lmbursement. if- the effect of he;time value Tof; money material 'rprowsrons are determmedlby

- discountmg the expected future cash ﬂDWs at 3 pre-mx rate thatreﬂects current market assessments of
the tlme" va _lire of {money: and the rlsks specnﬁc to the lzabilfty Whiere. discountrng s Used; theincrease in
the provision due to the passage of time is recogmsed ‘asa ﬁnance cost.

4

Provnsmns are recognised.when- the Group has'd present obllgatron (legal or coy \Str

hES

A drsclosu refora oontlngentlrabrl' ty is made. when thereisa possuble oh’hgatron ora present obl«gatnon
that may,’ but probably will: not, réquire an outfloiw of resources. Where,there is’ a possrble obllgatlon or
a present oblrgatlon in respect of whlch the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provnslon or.
dusclosure is rnade

Contrngent assets are’not recogmsed in the ﬁnanc:al statements. However,, contmgent assets are
assessed contrnually and'if. rt is v;rtually certam that an mﬂow of economic benefits will arise theasset
and related income are recogmsed in the penod in which the change occurs:




)

. 'equal amounts ovar th“e)expected useful life of. the related asset.

The farrvalue of.an asset or E) ln
use: when pncmg the asset or; llablhtv, assummg that market part:cupants ‘act in their economic bestr
‘interest.

lntas Pharm:aceutlcals Limited- _ ‘ -
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statéments as at March 31, 2021

Borrowing costs . - 2

-‘necessanlv takes a subslantlal penod of trme to get ready for its mtended use or sale are caplmllsed as'
ipart of the cost of the asset Al other borrowmg costs are expensedin the perlod in\which they oc¢éut.:

, Borrowlng costs consnst of nnterest and other costs that an entlty incuf rs in connectlon with the borrowmg

’

the borrowmg costs

i} .Government grants

Government grants are recognised where theré i§ réasonable’ assdran(:e that the grant wlll be recelved
‘and all attachedlcondltlons wnll be: comphed with: When the grant relates to an: expense ltem, itiis
.recogmsed as mcome on a systematnc basis:over, the perrods that the related: costs, for'which it!is
intended to' compensate, are'expensed: When the’ grant relates to an asset, it is recognised asincome in

When loans or s:m:lanassnstance are provlded by govemments o:; related lnstrtutuons,‘wrth aQ_,iEterest

govemment gran The loan or assistance’ |s mmaliy recogmsed ‘and’ measured at fair value and: Ehe
govemment grant is’ measured ‘as the dlfference between the initial carrvmg value of .the' loan and. the
proceeds recelved The loan is subsequently measured as per the aocountmg policya pplicableto financial
habnlmes.

Fair value measurement

“The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair. value is the prlce that would be recetved to sell an asset or, pald to transfera Ilab'llty inan orderly
Q%
:transactxon between market parhcrpa nts atthe measurement date. .Thefaurvalue fneasurementis based

“on thepresumption that the transaction to-sell the"; asset or‘transferghe llabnllty takes place enther

- inthe prmcnpal market for the asset or.habllity, or
.~ in'the absenceofa pnncrpal market, in'the mostadvantageous market for the assétor, lrabll’ty

Theprmenpal orthel most advanmgeous market mUSt be accessnble ,by,the Group.

i |ty rs measured uslng the assumptl‘onsthat market partlcrpantswould f .

“A fair value'measurement of.a non-fmancral asset takes mto account a market pamcnpant's ablllty to

generate economlc beneﬁts by usmg the asset in rts h |ghest and best useor bysellmg it to another market .
pa rtlcrpant thatwould use the assetin its hnghestand best use.
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The Group uses valiation techmques thatare appropnate in the crrcumstances and for, which sufficient
data is avallable to measure falr value maxnmrsmg the use of relevant observable rnputs and minimising

the use of ¢ unobservable inputs.

- - All assets and iibilities: for whrch fair.value'is measured o disclosed:in’ ‘the: Flnanclal Statements are
- ) we:ategonsed within the farr value hierarchy, descnbed as follows;'based on the lowest Ievel input thatis.
: - ssgnlﬁcant to the fair, value measurement asa whole:: .

;Level'l'—'QuOted-(unadjusted) market prices ihﬁactive markets for identical 3ssets or liabilities.-

Level 2.— 'Valuation" techmques for which thé:lowest level inpiit that'is’ ‘significant to the: t‘alr value*
rmeasunement is drrectly or rndrrectly observable

Level 3—Valuatron techmques for which: the lowest level lnput that is srgnlﬁcant ‘to? the fair value
‘measu rement is unobservable

‘For.assets and liabilities that are récognised’ m the Flnancral Statements on a recurring bass, the Group
determmes whether 1tr_ansfers have occurred between levelsf m the hleratchy by re-assessmg
categonsatlon (based onithe lowest. Ievel lnput that is sugmﬁcant to'the fair value: measurement as a

whaie) at the'end of each reporting perlod )

1]

At each repgrtrng date, the Group analvses ctl'le movemertts in tl;e values ofassets and llabrlrtles whrchare
reqwred to be re-measured or re-assessed as  per; the Compa ny’s accountmg poﬁcnes

‘For.the purpose of fair value’ 'disclosures; the Company has determined classes of assets and Ilabrlrtres 5 on ’
the basrs of the nature, characterrstlcs and nsks of the asset or- rabrrty and the level of the farr value
hrerarchy as explamed above.

This note summarises accounting polrcy for fair value: Othier fait valiie felated disclosuresare given in the
relevarit fotes.

- Drsclosu res for?valuatlon ‘methods;’ sngmﬁcant estimates and.assumptions.
;- Contmgent consrderatron

- Quantrtatnve disclosures of | farr value measurement hrerarchv

- Fmancral mstruments (rncludmg those carried at amortlsed cost), .

(w)- Segment reporting

Based on’ management approach as defined:in ' Indian’ Accountmg Slandard 1108 - Operatmg Segmerrt
Operatrng segments are reported ina mannerconsrstent wrth the lntemal reportrng provrded to the Chief.
Operatmg Decrsron Maker forevaluatlon of Group s performance.

(x), New Standards, Intérpretations arid amendments 3dopted by the Group
‘The; accountmg policies adopted in the preparatlon oftbe fi nancual statements are consrstent with those’
followed in the preparatlon of, the Group s annual i naoclal statements for the: year ended March: 31

\2020 except for the adoption of new standards(effect«ve or ‘amendments to the exustmg lndlan
Accountlng Standards (ind'AS) as of April 01;-2020. The Group has not early adopted any other standard
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4 Amendmems to lnd AS 116 Cowd-IS-Related Rent Concess:ans,
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“Intas Pharmaceuhca]s lented .
“Notes te the Connolldated Flamiciil Stafcrments 34 4t March 31; 2021
(Al aaimts in Indier Repecs milliss .;ééaﬁu‘;w.u.m-umunwmmu)
" PROPERTY. FLANT AND £Q 'Jfrm«-n - . A
eafuse
Frohold Land Lassebiald Land e Gwpp  Plasiasd Equipmens TRy, Competers Tomt
i Partizuin Lexschold Land  Office Premises
Gross Block e e - ) ’ .. :
A’s’&‘nﬁﬂmn. 1819 | ada8s3t. 104777 e - 550426 669367, 16ELT; 46582 - SO185 3002956
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,Aumuhm!apndnm&l-wmut . B .
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'15.98 . 47 - 31098 241.68* 203865 214.61 1041 10328 3,075.73
. {C YN ‘3047 ey - vt o e
- - . 1597 (0.46) (81.03) 9.1 (56,57 (6.66) (14&36)
e 218 - - __ 058 983 (18) #3636 9.60 | (220} 143 56.56
T - 4519 3475 BUSE 1598765, 77519 2199 438 — 15_7050
2018 13.15 390.58: 286,38 ; §2.53061 T i3n3 012 et aLrs
iz - (462) - 263) "(25023) (120.16):  (6038); {1160 (879.62)
.7 - : o.l ). 30.68 19.18" 157447 12052 P&}y -3595: ‘I
As-rwmdm,m; : P N 1Y T - 5378 " 75339 LI27.51% 8395A47= 99791 13444 - AS6SL - 11202607
| -ea7657 Vel 1oezi3 196631, STOA%IT, oSl TR ® ] 36948 19526 3edbias
428832 e 108500 f900.i0- 769" _iigdsa S} u'_je - m;g' _w  azaet Segyi |
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‘(AlFscnonats in-Indien Ripées williors, except share data snd where ofhiervyise stated)
S GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Gondwili Lienses & Macketix Tochulcat
) (Rafer Notes c:.n.m.r Avtboristion Sobrwace Krowlow Vout
Pariivalsn L& 3 btlovg) Righty
(Gross Block . .
A af April 1, 2019 5035651 4734 10,34899 407 206.34 €2,933.5
Additions: 33422 79.34 479045 16520 - 536091
Dispoeals - - 697) 0.02). - (6.98)
foeelga 1119620 18.48 47099 1811 - 1.704.78.
518693 845.06 15,805.16' 687,36 80634 TDAIES
- ol 1,067.82; 214.23 - 1,25605
- - 1685) (131.86) (18237 (321.08)
3,607.80 9.82 585.18 23.88 - 4226.65
554N 835488 1TA2528 . 763.51 €23.97 75.462.47 |
Accumulated amortisation & lmpafrmiedt ]
Asst April 01,2019 364630 47350 3410.19 15455 46824 8,162.28
Amortisation for (he year 91170 14367 302102 130:54 12234 432927
IDisposals . - (1.08) 165 - €57
Foreign currency transistion - 7.9 22546 10.56 - 4381 |'
As at March 31,2020 4,558.50 62496 666458 29730 £90.58. 1273594
| Amortisation forthe yes (Refer note 3 below) 91170 11527 206425 147.36. 1072 13,340.79°
Disposals - - @43) (92.43) (107.58) (202.44)
eéign Cuirenoy translstiot adjusiments - 426 324 (1431 - 4
AlarM‘mtth,lel 347.30 24448 3.050.87 33%.42 34, 16;196.70
Net Carrying valae . . .
Salance &t March 33,2020 47,32843 '220.10 9,140.58 360.07, 215.76 5126493
iceat March 31, 2021 50.024.53 #1039, 836641 425.19- 393 53.965.77

Ry, millics

275.09-

Intaagible assets under development
March 31, 2021
‘Maxch 31,2020

161,87




Intas Pharmaceuticals Limited
Noses to the Consollguted Fiamncial Statemontyas .z-a?: 201
{All amounts in Indias Rupees milliens, by

Note:

1. During the year ended March 31, 2016, the Scheme. of Amilgametion af Intas Lifesciences Privese Limiied (“Transferor) with thias: Pharmaceuticals Limited
("Tiwnsferee") having an sppoittied date of Apeil 1, 2014, was agproved by tha Hon'ble High Count of Gujarat pussuant to Soctions 391:394 of the Companies Act,
1956, [n accordanoe with the Scheme, the sssets and Habititios aqﬂ;ﬂogiﬂngknn—? fair valie and. consequendly, the emalgamation was
aceountod by Trangferee Group under the ' Purchase Meiiod” as pe d by ing Standard 14 * thor. of that point of Gime,

Accordingly; the Geoup hed recogrized Goodwill of Rs 9,117 million x5 at the appoinied date under the Schenie which is being ainoniscd over. 10 years,

The ebove accomnting treatmen kias booe given sflect jn accordance with the: Court Order which il i ting
goodwitl has boen catried Rrwand and oontinued 1o be dmortised under Ind As.

uﬂﬁE:ﬂE?ﬂgiu?gﬁ%é of the CGUS sre detsemined from vatue -fr se calcutation. The key ivas-for the

g_ﬁns»_nwgeﬂkl:zgu_ 2021, the gooduil s oot kuptired. Macagemes beliovos et any easonsblo pomible change I any of these
wauld not

a, I respect of goadwill arising on emalgamstion of Intes LI Sticace PV Lid., the group prepared lis forscas with projected revenue growth rates of 2.3% 0
8% E«gu«ﬂaiiliﬁgﬁg?ﬂkloi:

. In respact of the goedwill ariving on busi Acvord-UK Limit Actavis UK Limited) and Actavis [reland Limited, tho group prepercs

_waapﬁz:-:neoﬂ&.niﬁ ~§l1isﬁa.s it ing of these forecast is 109,

©. [n tespect of of Bsseqial icdls LLC, USA, the Group preperes ity fasecast with projocted revanue growth.

micof m.«fﬂ-ﬁi»g?&*sag_’ﬁgi—ntl

ES%»&EE&?&G:E:»S_ ?nwvgi_ﬁ.s_ 5!3.. it bl 138 in sy of
carying cases, .

3. wllh_.l_ﬂa_n-ﬁs.fno n smounting t Ra. S.wwzsgaeﬁ.ﬁ:ﬁ UITER! Year




Intas Pharmaceuticals Limited
Nates to'the Consolidated Financial Statemeénts as at Marc.h 31, 2021
_(All amounts in Indian Rapees millions, ‘except share data and where otherwise stated) _ . .

6¢ INVESTMENTS' T No of Shares, Asat, \qi-eh-sr j

-

Nouocnrrent investment . ; 2021 . .202007 2021 2020
Investment at falr valie thrgugn other comprehensive income ) : ) LS

Tnvestment in equuy instruments (Quoted) - i . ,
Cominon Stock of Verpro lnc (USA) of per value of USD 0 001 18.,17,66,666 ~18,17,66,666

- «ehch fully Paidup’ - : ' 1336} 1371
Less: Prowsson for dimmutmn in value oﬂnveslments . .o to- (13:36) 13.1)
!State Bank of India of Rs.10 euch._ - : w6 el . - oaL o
- .- ' " : - p20)~" N
lnvestmcut ln £q u!ty mstrumen(s (Unquoced) LT . ’ - . .
(Common Units of Mobius Therapeutics LLC, USA T 152 . 152 3%.75 137,72
: _ T - 375} 3772
- : e, T2
i . - . h %35 - = XTI,
Aggmgatc book value ofquoted mvcstrncms (ncx of prowston) 020 86; 11- .
Aggregate inarket valoe of quoted lnvcstments 0201 - 0 1
Aggrega(cll_a_gokvaluc of unquoted investments 36.75 3112
‘Aggregate” ﬁaﬁ' value of unquomd investments . 36.73) ' 37 72
7 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - - iNomcurrent __ . Current___. _ {
: : AsaFMarch 31 Asat March 31
I 2021 200 2021 20200 .
Unsecurcd oonsxdered good . ) T . v
Secunty dcposﬂs . 20046 < *157 l} 26.62 23, 661 :
;_lnte_n_st airued on loans and dcposus | - : © O ILH KX 50 .
e 3 ns&rmpems atfmrvaluc thirough.profit and loss ! - - - 0. 130 - p
+Exp encfitt MEIS hcense receivable : - ' - 1,55%.02 © 25930 09 '
Others(Refcr note 34) . 681592 - '
B B 7,017.38). . . 15713 1.594.88 ‘2ﬁ25.25
‘8 DEFERRED TAX,NET : : As a1 March 31 i
T - _ , : 1 2t T 2020 :
Enutles havmg “deferred tax Iiabllltles net : . e ' (1:961.01) £(2.364: 43)' .
vEntities havmgd:ferredmusets et - ‘ N 426634, . 3383.92. -
- - . 2305331 1,01949°
Refer ot 45, for details of deferred (o . > T
9 TAD T ’ .As.at- March 31
' 2021 2020 5
. Advance intome-tax (net of provnslonfoﬂaxﬂuon) . 3,046.84 i 246948
*Liabilities for,current tax; net . . : (790.23% . ... . (62.25)"
2256611 . °2407.23%
‘16 OTHER ASSETS' ] ’ - . :Non-current - 'iCiﬁ:f:ent
o - i As af March 31 As at March 31 ﬁ
2021 CT 320200 - 2021 _ 20200
Cnp-tal Advances o ) - T B :
Unsecured consldered good 214.26 ,223.48. - . . -3
2‘4.26‘ 2__23_48_: - iy
Advnncw recoverabte in'Cash or Kind’ . . i . -
"Utsecurad; considered gaod : - . Joaal | 9w .. 133941
- ‘0.24. 92r72) - 133941
Othérs: T
:Unsecured,” considered good e
'Prcpmdexpcnscs : - - 868.23 | 74763
Advance to crnployces 3897 26.39 8.18 .'1‘6.9‘51'i
Balances with staiutory aulhonttcs 61733 588.70 2,604.60 1231933
‘Returh assets _ = - 66.67 "63.63.
‘Accrued income - - 187.58¢. 219.46
Others ; - - 1 70953} 694.41
i 644.30 615.09 4.445.09. .4,051.41
860.56 838.81. 5,366.81§ *5,390.82




Intas Pharmaceuticals Limited ) -
Notes to the Consolidated Fmaneual Statements as al March 3[ 2021 -

(All imionnts in Indian’ Rupeos millions, ﬂu:ept ‘share data and where otherwrse s(ated)

1l INVENTORIES. ‘As at March 3§
N . 2021 2020
[Valued at lower of cost and et realisable Value] ) - - - =
éRaw wmaterials and packing materials - ‘
'(lnc(udmg goods in transit Rs 490 08 milllon (Ma.rch 3! 2020' Rs.l96 87 miltion) ’ 16,101.76 16,008.54 :
‘Finished and tradéd goods 26,756.75 £23.771.09:
Wonk«n-pmgrm ) ’ B - ’ 6,834.00 -5,447.60.
Fuigl, stofes; sparés and others ) - T 805.82 639.05-
) : ) i to 50,548.33 _ .45,866.28-

Durmg the yéaf the Group recorded mvcntory wrMan of Rs. 523.03 mnlhon (March 3% 2019 Rs 282.“ million).

'; As at March 31 '
) 202 | 2020;

‘17 TRADE RECEIVABLES -

séé\iiéd.caﬂsider’ed'g‘oad - , 208.10)
Unsecured, consnderod good {Refernote (i) below} : 26,983.95
TradeRcccwab{es . Credit impaired ) ‘178.07] .
) 27370.12 3,924.73
. 'Léssi Allowance for impairment: -= , (17807 . {169.003,
e . d 27am285]. < 3331573

Note (i) For duss: from telated parties (Refer note 36)
- - () There are no receivables. which s slgmﬁcant inctéase in credit sk aocordmgly the biﬁsrcahon of rece:vabtes in rcoenvahles
*w}uch have sng;nﬁcant increase in'crédit risk™ as rcqun'ed by Schsdile IIT'of the Compames "Act 20131 is not apphcable

13, LOANS;, :. - - .
i - ) ) Non-current: CirFrent . .
As at March 31 Asat March 31 '
2021 C 42020 2021 :2020°
:Usisecured, considered good T E " o
Loans to employees. . - 8.27).- 8.98° 8.74 _7.08:.
827 8.98. 8.74 ’ 7.08.
Nove Smce aﬂ the above loans gwen by thc Company are unsecured and oons:daed good, the bifurcation of loans In other categories as. reqmred

lnans whnch have scgmﬁcmt ingrease in Credit risk and ¢)’ mdxt mpan‘ed is ot

by Sahedule TT of the Ct)mpamcs Act 2013 vu. a) securcd

‘applicable.
14 :CASH'AND CASH EQUIVALENTS A -
R T ) As.at March 31 .
' 2021 ‘2020
{Batarices with banks: o .
iOn élrrént accounts ‘ 13,779.39 547319
‘Deposits With orcgmal matun:y of &35 thari three momhs 18,904.90 . '900.00:
Cash onhaid 4.57 239
. - . 32,688.86] - . 6375.58:°

At March 31, 20215 ‘the group has availablké Rs 25, 880.48 willion (Man:h 31 2020 Rs. 4 65&72 mdhon) of undrawn commmed bnrrong
facﬂme&

The Cun'ent accounm balance ason March 31, 2021 includes balancc of Rs, I80 05 Million {Previous yeas an) ‘With T respcct of Grant teceived
from’ Bmtechnology Industzy Rescarch Assistance Counc:l (BIRAC) w:th respecno research under Cowd-l9 prajects; wuthdrawablc a3 per.terms.

of agrecmmt w:th BIRAC _ . i
1S OTHER BANK BALANCES ! As at Macch 31 ]
. 2021 20200 .

On deposits (with original matarity of more than 3 months) . 13L16 ‘14220

131161 11220

Balaices to the Exierit held as maigi ioney deposits against guarantee ? 6141 64.61




Intas Pharmaceutlcals lelted
Nam to the Consohdated F’mancml Statement& as at Marcl: 3] 2021

(AN amounts in Indian Rupees mmmns, cxcept share data and where otherw:se stated)

16 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised éapig' { .
E -«u‘i_.k. s
‘Equity shares of Rs.10 ezohi

.n d | fl P Shares

-

(a) Reconcilinnon of ¢ the sumber of sharcs ontstandmg at the begmmng sad st the end of the year

a

Eauity Shares*

Attt the begmmng of the year

. D I

Changes durmg ‘the year
;Outstanding at thé'end of the year

(b): Details of Shareholders holding riore thiin 5% equity Shares in the Company -

Name of Shareholders B

BmabenN Chudgar
Duncarn Investments (Mauritius) Pre Ltd
+ Kusumben H Chudgar
Nimnsh HChudgar .
Bmlsh H Chudgar .
Shail U Chudgar: -

W

< Hastoukh K Childgat

© ‘Termsl ngbts attached to eqmty shiares

The Company has issued’ only one cl: class ot’ eqmty shams havmg a: par value ot Rs 10 per. share ~Each equity. sharcholder is enntled to‘one’ '

As'st March 31
2024 - 20200 v
No. ol shares’ Amount No. of shares *Amount p
17,54,66,752 1,754.61] 17.54,66.752 . 1,754.67
17,54,66,752 1,254.67] '17,54,66,752 1,754.67 .
11,47,67,049 1,147,671 11,47,43972° 14744
11,47,67,049 1 141.3’f . '11,47,43,972: 1,147.44
As at March 37 1§
2021 | = . 2020
No. of shares Anmpuat ‘No. of sharcs AAmoum
114743972 L147.44| 114743972 ‘4 147.44
23,077.00 [%x) S -
11,47,62,049 1,147.67}. 11,47,43.972 — :1,147.44
Pl
As at March 31 1
2021 "2020° '
No. of shares % Holding _|»No-of shares: ___% Holding”
1,83,48,561 15.99| ,8’3.48 s61 1599
1,82,35972 1589  1,8235,072 -15 9-
1,68,83,983 1471 1,68,83,983
1,16,21,100 0.3 516,221,100,
1,12,96,154 984 L 12,96,154
94,47,766 823 9447.766 ‘s
79,86,194 6oty 79, 86, Jo4t 6.9
62,17,469 5421 62i17,469. 5427
£9,23,061 5,16 59,23.061 5. 16‘
10,59.59,350. 9233 .10,59,59,360° . _ 9233

‘vote per. shm-e. ‘The> Dmdend proposed by the»Board of Du-ccwrs is sub)ect to the approval of. the Shareholders m‘the ensumg Annuall
ral

ém:ded to reccwe remammg assets of (he Company, a&er dlsmbunon of all prefetential’ amounts The" dlsmbutaon "Will ‘be in proportlon on 10"

the Aumber of ¢ equuy  shares held by ‘e shamholders

(d) Slures  reserved for i issue under. options\

-



Intas Pharmaceuticals Limited
Notcs to the Consohdated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2021 .
(All amounts in l‘ndmn Rupces mﬂhons, except share data and where otherwise stated) .

17 'OTHER sQum’i

(a) Capitnl redemptmn Feserve
Closing balance: ’ -
(b) Securities premium acconnt . ’ .« -
. Balance'as per last Balance Sheét. . .
Add' Tmnsfen‘ed from ESOS Rescfvc . -

(:) Gcneral reserve’ - -
Bn!gng:e as per last Balmcc Sheet,
‘Add: Transferred from Sharc base payment réserve: T -

[t

7 (d):iShare biséiuyiii'e'm Feserve, -
: On accoitnt of Employee Stock Option Scheme

Addmon/ (Cancellauon) durmg the year (Reﬁ’er note 43)
Less txansferred o securities Premium
;Less: transfeired to general reserve

-~ -z

A(e) On accountof S(ock ayprecmtlon rights scheme .
‘Balance as per Tast Balanice Sheet ;
‘Addition/ (Canceuatlon) duung the year (Rcfér note 43)

(f) Retamed earnmg,s
I§a!ance as pcr last Ba!ance Shee‘t

..~~‘

-mcastgrement loss of deﬁned beneﬁt plans, net of tax;
‘Less: Apnmgm;t‘i'ons

Transfe to SEZ Rélnvestment Reserve:

Less: vardcnd on equxty shares’

;| Less: andend d1 ‘tribmlon tax

‘LeSs, lntcmm and specwl dmdend

Lésst Dividend disiribution tax.

Net Surplis ifi the Consolidated Statément of Profit and Laoss
(g) mrkeinvesmentkesme

'Balance as per k: last Balance Sheet

Add: mn’sfctred from refained camings

cmsmgbaxance “ T

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (OCI)

(h) Fomgn cnrrency transtatxon reserve:
Balance as per | last Balance: Sheet .
. Addmons du:mg the year

(i) Cash ﬂow hedge reserve
JBalanee as per last Balance Sheet
[yirtat

(NGt moveTent for the year
“Tax impact”

(J) i Net Investment Hedge Reserve
+Batancc as per last Balance Sheet”
Net movement for the yeat!
Tax lmpact

Total other equity

n

[

As at-March 31 .
2021 . 2020 N
B30 . - 40330
4,000.49 4,000.49°
58.60) . -
4,059.09 -4,000.49;
1905274| - _
‘ 26.41 )
) 19,079.15
§62.39 "4z
(77.38Y | 139.97
' {58.50)] X I
264Nl - _ _{d.70)
- 562.39°
158.72 11049,
: (158.73)l. .. 48.23,
3 - 158.72"
h . ) -
1 sos0.62)" 54,777.81
22.898.08 116,405.:62.
nml (142.16)¢
£2,869.75) 2
- (516.35)
- -(106.14)
- *(745 84).
- (1533
$9,570.65 | '69,519.63
- -3
2.869.75 -
2,869.75 T
1,077.67 111822
(85.43) (40 '55)
99264 107767~
(14.66) -
17.76 (17.16)
(3.10), 3:10
N T (14:66).
47415 (502,645
3,166.34 ‘IS3AL
(554.11) (206.62)°
3,086.38 1474:15.
= S—
1,20,060.97 1. . 05,234,44
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Intas Pharmaceuticals Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as 4t March 31, 2021
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees milllons, except share data and where otherwise stated)
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NATURE AND. PURPOSE.OF RESERVES

Capital Redemption Reserve : This reserve was created for redemption of preference shares issued in the financial year2010-11. The preference
shares were redesmed in the fiancial year 20112012,

Securities Premium:: Securities premium is used to record the premium. on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes
such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provigions of the Companies Act, 2013,

General Reserve : General reserve is.created from time to time by way of teansfer. of profits from retained ¢arnings for appropriation purposes.

Shars based: payment Reserve : The sharc options based payment reserve is used to recognjse the grant date fair value of options. issued to
employees inder Employee stock option plan,

Foreign currency translation Reserve : Exchange differeces arising on translation of the foreign: operations are recogonised in other
comprehensive income as descfibed in. accounting policy and accumulated in 2 separate reserve within equity. The cumulative amount is
reclassified o profit or foss when the net investment is disposed-off.

Cash {low hedge reserve : The Company uses hedging intruments as part of management of fareign currency risk and interest rate ﬁskassoqia&es
on borrowing for hedging foreign currency and interest rate risk, the Company uses foreign. curtency forward contracts, option range forward. To
the extent these hedges are effective, the change in fair value of bedging instrurent is cecognized in cash flow hedge reserve. Amount recognized
in the cash flow hedge reserve is re classified to the statement of profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or* loss.

Net Tnvestment Hedge Reserve ;. A Net Investment Hedge Reserve is reserve arising from an entity'$ Net Investment jn a Foreign Operation. The
same incudes the foreign exchange ﬂuctuauon oft-loans to-foreign currencies for which the payment is not a(pected in farseeable future.

Special Economic Zone reinvestment reserve ; The Special Economu: Zone reinvestment reserve has been créated out of the profit of ¢ligible
SEZ units in terms of the provisions of section 10AA(1Xii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The reserve should be utilised by.the Company for
acquiring new plant and machinery for the purpose of its business in terms of the section-10A A(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

a) Dividend distribution made and propoesed

Particulars Asat March'{ AsatMarch 3l
31 2021 2020

(Cash dividend on equity shares declared and paid

Final dividend on equity shares @ Rs Nil per share (PY - Rs. 4.50 per share) L - 516.35

Interim dividend on equity shares @ Rs Nil per:share (PY - Rs.4.50 per share) - 51635

Special dividend on equity shares @ Rs Nil per share’ (PY - Rs:2 per share) - 229:49:
Dividend distribution tax. - 25945

Proposed dividend on equity shares:

Final dividend on equity shaces @ Rs 6.50 per share (PY - Rs. Nil per share) - -

Proposed dividend on equity shares is subject to the approval at the Annual General Meeting and not recognised as liability as at the Balance-
Sheet date and hence no effect is given in these consolidated financial statements.

LONG TERM BORROWINGS Non-current Current
As at March 31 Asat March 31_ J
021 2020 2021 | 2020
A T
Term Loans from Banks - at amortised cost ' X
Foreign Currency Loans (Secured) “17,178.86 - 25.916.90 15,556.90 : 14,762.64
Qther Loans 1 E
Unsecured - 1 - “ 15.34
17,178.86 25,916.90 15,556.90 | 14,777.98
The above amount includes: ] }
Secured Bosrowings 17,178.86 25,916.90 15,556 90 i 14,762.64
Unsecured Borrowings - - 15.34
Amount disclosed under the head "Other cuerent financial - - { 15,556.90) {14,777.98)
liabilitics” (refer note 24) : l
Net Amount 17,171886 | 25,916.90 ( - | -

{i) Loan taken by Intas (Parent company) : The foreign currency loan is secured by

(8) First ranking pari passu charge on movable assets

(b) Second pari passu floating charge on current assets

(¢) First ranking pari passu charge on certain tradémarks of the Parent Company.

(d) First ranking pari passu charge on certain immovable properties of the Parent Company.
Repayment schedule

Rate of Interest As at March 31 2021 2021-22 2022-23
- Euribor + 2.45% 17,894.24 8,947.12 8.947.12
& Cg((
O

g

p &
\3
vn o



Intas Pharmaceuticals Limited
Notes fo the Consolldated Flnancwl Statements as at March 31 2021
(AR amounts in [ndian Rupees mllllons, except share data and where omennsestated)

(_) Loan taken bz éccord ﬂg hg £ Li mg g, g +The loan takén by Accord Hcalthcare Limited, UK (Accord) for Sr.no (‘) Libor+ 2. 30%
is secured by :

(a) First’ pﬂ,onty pledge'dver “all-shares of the Accord

(b) First pnbntypledge over atl shares of Actord UK Lifnited (earherlmown 4§ Actavis UK Liiited) and’ Acoord Heaﬂhuarc lreland Lirmted
r‘(earlfet known &5 Actavis lmland leited) - -

Accordl UK Limited (enrhcr known P Actavis UKanltod) and Accord Hcalthcare Irclandtumted (eatller known as Actzms Ireland
Limitéd) and material contiacts]. . - .

a %

(d) F‘rst xankmgsecumy over: all assels and accounts of Accord UK Lirmtcd (earlier krgwn as Actavis UK letted) and Accord Healthcare'
" réland Limited (earher known as Adtavis Treland Limited) in the UK and Treland. present and fumre,

(c) . Assignment of the Accord  rights unider the Share’ Purchase Agreement : . - -

;(t) Ass:gnment of shamho!der !nansftom Intas to the Accord

-

,Repayment schiedale -

Rate of Toterest. | As at March 31 2021].2021-22:] 2022-23 | 2023-24 | 202425
@ Lbor+ 2.30% ) ) D A T
DLibor+ 130% |~ - 381420 - | L27L40 [eip7i40 127040 |
(|6 Libor.+ 0.72%- ss2190 [ 110438 [ 220876220876 ] -
‘G 31.’9"55’;;‘1_«' g“ﬁ‘gggg’m‘ Hga]tbcam In& USA s ‘. - e

rmllion) is takcn ata vaﬂable Intcrcst rate of 180 days LIBOR plus 1 95% for acqutsnlon ‘of fitm. named as "Essentnal Pharmaceutxcal LLQ. ,
USA" ,The sald loan is secured through'second pari passu ﬂoaung charge on mventor'y {ridE & Gther recéivables s of th the Accond Healthearc
an USA. Apm ﬁ'orn the secunty pmvxded by the Accord Hcalthcare lnc USA the loan'is also secured by way of Stock Pledge of holdmg»,

3T
xS

stanmg from Jnnuary 201 8 amountmgto USD 4, 750,000 each - -
{_} Othér loans from Bmtcchnology lndustry Résearch Assisiance Cotinil [BIRAC] cecrymg mterest @3% has been repald dnrmg current
period,
19 'OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AsatMarch3dl |
I 2021 ©2020
Deposins received | 273.98 27309
Lease Liabilities (Refernote 43)' 6!1.62 1680.70°
Others (inc;udes ESOP Llablhttes 0f R$.451:87. Mn Refer note 42) 45187 . =t
. 1,337.47 1953, 89
‘20 :PROVISIONS - __‘Non-Current: . iCurrent. ,
' . A3 at March 31 As atMarch 31 ] -
L 2021 2020 2021 20200
m’m \5!§' sion for empiom mnefits )
varswn “for gratmty (Refer.nete 37) 509.72 '805.601 326.62 314,11
‘Provision for 1éavé encashment / other benef' ts 775.18 -_79840 : 289.01 $196.82.
+Peovision for pension . (Refer néte 37) 18.84 17.27 155.33 . 46273
) ’ 1,303.74 1531127, 71096 $557.20
. g}gﬂ grovis:gns f o
~Customer return and n:bates - e 1,180.61. 1,052.50
iOthers (Refernote ") 7,935.10 - - e
7,935.10 T I 1,180.61 11,052.50
‘ 9,238.84 ‘1,531.27 1,951.57 ~ T .1:,609.70
) ' : Asat.March 31 ]
Provision for Customer return and rebé'te_s i 2021 ... 2020
Opening balance: - ‘ 105250)  © 70044
Add Created durmg the year 1,180.61 t 052 50
Less: Utilised during the year (1.052.50)). "(700.44)°
Closulg balance 1,180.61 }; 1,052.50




